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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

behalf of th Board of Directors, |
am pléazi?ed ihb-bf resent to shareholders
the annual report of VSTECS Holdings
s g gy .
Limited (the “Compny”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Gl%'ﬁp”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

ANERRESTORRMEAEERFL
EARERBRAG (AR LR EH
BEAr (Gl [ AKE] ) EE_S—4F
+—A=+—HESEZS®H:

Dear investors,

Time flies. 2021 is an extraordinary year with ups and downs, during
which the COVID-19 epidemic remained recurrent across the globe, the
Sino-US rivalry continued, geopolitical crisis conflicts failed to cease,
various incidents such as Black Swan and Grey Rhinoceros emerged one
after another, and the macroeconomic and market situation were more
complex and changeable, which made the economic environment rife
with various uncertain factors. Facing the epidemic situation in the century
and the changes in the past century, VSTECS has been focusing on the
established strategic goals, forged ahead with its initial mission, continuously
strengthened ecological construction and improved operational efficiency,
made steady progress and went against the trend, which further enhanced
the core competitiveness and performance of the Group to a higher level in
2021.

06 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

BUEEN  RF4F |

B L EEE - s A R - RORALFE T X Bk E K
20215 EHRIERE PEAN WEBAR
BERTE  SBERXE REFTEHELTE
ZERENM ST BENEMZE  REEAR
BRAFRESETHRERZ BHELRE BF
BR BAEAHRESRTHHEER RS
VIo - B ATTT R MR A RER - THIIRS
BEME B PEMmE S2021FAE
B LS E - SIRe REE B



In the fiscal year 2021, VSTECS overcame difficulties and made positive
progress. Through the construction of organizational culture and the
improvement of management level,
kept the Group’s performance growing at a high speed, and all business
indicators reached a record high. During the reporting period, the turnover
was HK$78.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 12%. The net
profit was HK$1.31 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 23%.
Return on equity (ROE) was 17.4%. These achievements were mainly due to
(i) the Group continuously improved its operation and management level, and
provided a solid guarantee for business development by strictly controlling
risks and improving efficiency; (i) the digital potential energy of industries in
China and Southeast Asia has been continuously released, and the demand
of end customers has recovered, so that the Group’s various businesses
have continued to improve; (i) with a focus on the core main business,
the Group continuously improved its comprehensive service capability, and
helped its turnover and net profit reach new highs.

it continued to create value, which

In terms of product segments, the cloud computing segment, the enterprise
system segment and the consumer electronics segment all achieved
different degrees of growth. In 2021, the revenue of cloud computing
segment increased by 39%, with turnover of HK$2.344 billion. Revenue of
the consumer electronics segment also recorded an increase of 18%, with
turnover of 32.282 billion. Under the influence of insufficient supply of chips
and accessories, the revenue of the enterprise system segment reached
HK$43.709 billion, representing an increase of 7%.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEHEE (&)

In terms of region segments, during the reporting period, the turnover
from North Asia increased by 12%, and the turnover from Southeast Asia
increased by 12%. Although the current epidemic situation is still repeated,
with the first control of the domestic epidemic situation and the continuous
recovery of customer demand, the demand for IT infrastructure in Southeast
Asia market was huge, and the demand for digital transformation of
enterprises was gradually recovering. VSTECS seized the market opportunity
and realized the rapid growth of turnover and profit. As a leading channel
provider in Southeast Asia, the Group stands out with its economies of
scale and channel value, and thereby significantly improved its profit level.
In the future, the Group will continue to benefit from the rapid growth in the
demand for IT infrastructure construction in China and Southeast Asia, with
performance expected to maintain a rapid growth momentum.

The year 2021 marks the 100th anniversary of the founding of the
Communist Party of China, and it is also the first year of implementing the
14th Five-Year Plan and striving for socialist modernization. “Don’t wait
to whip itself’, and VSTECS, committed to leading digital Asia, keeps its
strength and vigilance, built a new development pattern based on the new
development stage, always maintained creative tension and kept the attitude
of forging ahead. With unyielding and tenacious spirit, VSTECS firmly
stabilized the basic foundation and held up the development base with solid
efforts, and finally realized the Group’s leading growth and win-win results.

Since its listing in 2002, VSTECS has experienced several global crises,
such as financial tsunami, the tech bubble, the Sino-US trade disputes and
the COVID-19 epidemic. However, VSTECS has made steady progress
in the storm without fear of difficulties. The Group has developed rapidly,
and its turnover has grown rapidly from HK$1.6 billion in 2002 to HK$78.3
billion in 2021, with an average annual growth rate of 27%. It undertook the
heavy responsibility of digital transformation and high-quality development
in the industry. With this rapid development, VSTECS Group will seize the
opportunity, and set sail for the vast ocean with the dream of going to the
world.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTEREE (&)
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During the reporting period, the Group’s business started as scheduled in
the established strategic direction, and the main progress was as follows:

1. Made targeted planning in all aspects and

continuous breakthroughs in the emerging
technology fields

With the accelerated development of the global digital economy and
the country’s vigorous promotion of “new infrastructure”, the new
round of scientific and technological revolution and industrial revolution
have promoted the development of various industries to a new stage,
and new technologies such as big data and artificial intelligence have
become brand-new forces to transform various industries after Internet
technology. As a leading enterprise in science and technology service
and cloud service industry, VSTECS has made great achievements
with its excellent technical strength and service ability.

In fiscal year 2021, the Group signed contracts for more than 70
new product lines, and reached strategic cooperation with Beijing
Certificate Authority, Information2, icloud Innovation, Unary, Ou Hua
Information Network, JD.COM Technology Al Robot, OceanBase,
Transwarp, Teredata, MulangCloud, laiye, etc., to accelerate the layout
of artificial intelligence, big data and innovation industries. During the
reporting period, as a one-stop service provider for the core business
of new infrastructure, the Company saw a rapid growth in the
enterprise system segment. Xinhua Ill Server has grown substantially,
and SmartX’s performance has increased, maintaining its leading
position in the financial industry and ranking first in the market share of
the domestic hyper-converged software financial industry.

In terms of consumer electronic, VSTECS made accurate layout for
all the online and offline channels. The e-commerce sales volume was
stably increased, and the change of shopping habits of consumers
created space for long-term growth. The revenue contributions by No.
2 and No.5 customer of the Group recorded a year-on-year increase of
29% and 101%. By the category, the Group helped Sony PlayStation5
to be launched into Chinese market by holding New Arrival Signing
Session in Shanghai, Beijing, Chongging, Xi'an, Zhengzhou, Wuhan
and Shenzhen, bringing unexpected next-generation visional, audio,
tactile and entertaining experience to Chinese players. VSTECS
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with H3C, the leader in
the “smart screen and cloud technology” industry, striving to promote
the high-quality sustainable development of the social and digital
ecology jointly with H3C as the master agent of H3C Cloud Screen
MagicHub in China. Promoted a full range of C-end smart products
of IFLYTEK, and doubled the sales volume; It actively grasped the
opportunities of Internet smart hardware by holding the “Duer New
Arrival Channel Appraisal Conference jointly with Duer.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEHEE (&)
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At the 29th China (Shenzhen) Gifts & Home Expo, VSTECS
participated in on the expo with more than 100 e-consumer products
of 14 brands. Covering four themes, i.e. Al life entertainment, smart
education, smart office and smart terminal, it integrated smart
electronic products, wearable products and home entertainment
products centered on application scenarios, displayed the unique
charm of Al products, and offered splendid experience with Al
technology, which attracted many customers for experience and
exchange. Meanwhile, VSTECS can also provide full-range purchase
and sales service for various purchasers and distributors, and created
one-stop service solutions for gift purchase and sales by linking
diversified industries.

As a high-tech service provider based on the distribution business of
world-leading high-tech products, VSTECS has made in-depth layout
for the e-consumer product channels at present. In 2021, VSTECS
(China) entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with iFLYTEK,
in order to jointly promote the in-depth integration of “Al + industry”,
build new ecology of Al industry and expedite the application of Al in
the industry.

Against the backdrop of accelerated integration of Al technology
and traditional electronic products, VSTECS will constantly enrich
its diversified advantageous categories, provide the latest and
most popular high-tech products for partners jointly with brand
owners through diversified modes, and enrich the high-quality life of
consumers through various channels.

Built a cloud full-life cycle service system and
cooperated closely with many well-known
vendors

With excellent technical strength and high-quality service, VSTECS
won strong recognition in the industry. In IDC’s China Third Party
Cloud Management Service Market Share Report in 2020, VSTECS
ranked sixth. According to the report, from the market share of
service providers, after the test of the COVID-19 epidemic and the
favorable policies and enterprises, the top six cloud management
service providers in China, including VSTECS, jointly occupied nearly
34% of the market share, which increased compared with the market
concentration (30.4%) in the same period last year.
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VSTECS is good at building integrated cloud services. In recent years,
the Group has deepened the business planning of cloud computing
and digital transformation and provided enterprise customers with
cloud life-cycle services and full-region and full-cycle product systems,
including cloud consulting, cloud migration, cloud operation and
maintenance, cloud security and cloud optimization. During the
reporting period, new service items include “Midea Group Terminal
Operation and Maintenance, CDB Jiangsu Branch Desktop Operation
and Maintenance, Yuexiu Group Cloud Management Service,
Shenzhen Bus Group Hybrid Cloud Architecture, Xinjiang Smart
Parking Lot Huawei Cloud Project, and Jixi Smart Heating Huawei
Cloud Project.”

VSTECS has cooperated with Huawei for more than ten years, and
the two sides have cooperated deeply and made great achievements.
In 2021, it won Huawei’s annual outstanding global distributor. Since
the official cooperation with Huawei Cloud in April 2021, VSTECS has
quickly built empowerment centers and cloud service teams all over
the country. With its powerful channel resources, it rapidly expanded
customers with the goal of focusing on channel ecological construction
and supplemented by industry customers. The Group ranked in the
forefront of Huawei Cloud’s ecological partner performance, and
has been valued and recognized by Huawei Cloud, and won Huawei
Cloud Ecological Award.

As an important partner in Huawei Cloud Ecosystem, Cloud Star
officially became Huawei Cloud Kunpeng Cloud partner in 2021,
and completed compatibility tests with Huawei Cloud Stack8.0 and
Huawei Cloud Kunpeng Cloud Service, respectively. So far, Cloud
Star RightCloud’s new generation cloud management platform has
completed compatibility and adaptability test verification with domestic
servers such as Feiteng and Kunpeng, and domestic operating
systems such as Galaxy Kylin, which is a cloud management platform
with wide compatibility and adaptation of domestic systems.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEHEE (&)

During the reporting period, Huawei also launched a joint cloud
operation solution with Cloud Star. Based on Huawei Cloud Stack’s
powerful cloud platform and industry experience, combined with
Cloud Star RightCloud’s easy-to-use, easy-to-manage and refined
operation capabilities to jointly create an end-to-end cloud operation
solution, the solution provides customers with integrated monitoring,
integrated management, and intelligent operation capabilities of
resource operation, realizing efficient operation. At present, this joint
cloud operation solution has been implemented in several projects.
Amongst, Wuhan Artificial Intelligence Center Project has been built
as the first computing center of artificial intelligence experimental
area in China with important benchmarking significance in the whole
country, which has addressed the problem of unified operation of
multiple computing power, and will help to build one center and four
platforms, open up the link of “government, industry, university and
research”, realize the closed loop of large business, and strive to
form new development advantages with artificial intelligence industry
convergence. Xi'an Future Artificial Intelligence Computing Center, as
the first large-scale artificial intelligence computing power platform in
Northwest China, realizes refined cloud operation through this joint
solution, builds a solid computing power base for Qinchuangyuan
Innovation Drive Platform in Shaanxi Province, and provides a strong
platform support for Xi’an to build National New-Generation Al
Innovation & Development Pilot Zone.

In terms of cooperation with Alibaba Cloud, VSTECS won the title
of Alibaba Cloud FY21 Performance Growth Star, and its sales
performance met a breakthrough again. At Alibaba Cloud’s 2021
Apsara Conference under the theme of “Invent - Explore - Inspire”,
Alibaba Cloud authorized VSTECS as a partner of the Big Data and
Al Ecological Cooperation Program and recognized the strategic
cooperation achievements of both parties. From Alibaba Cloud’s
national distributor, to MSP’s core partner, and then to strategic
partner, with the deepening of cooperation mode with Alibaba Cloud,
VSTECS achieved steady business growth, and its ability to serve
customers in the industry has also been continuously enhanced. It
has constantly signed contracts to serve head customers in the fields
of finance, games and entertainment, energy, retail, government and
enterprises, etc.
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VSTECS has a forward-looking planning of cloud business, and
became the earliest partner of VMware’s business in China as early
as 2006. After more than ten years of cooperation, Cloud Star and
VMware jointly released a joint solution for multi-cloud management
in 2021 to help partners and customers cope with multi-cloud
challenges. This joint solution opened a new chapter of cooperation
for deep integration.

In addition, during the reporting period, the Group officially joined
the Amazon Cloud Technology China Regional Promotion Plan and
became an authorized value-added promoter of Amazon Technology
China. In the future, VSTECS will continue to join hands with partners
to help Chinese enterprise users quickly integrate into the new
infrastructure and fully embrace the new future of digital industry.

Strengthened the construction of information
technology infrastructure in Southeast Asia to
help enterprises reduce costs and increase
efficiency

In Southeast Asia, VSTECS served many head customers in
government, finance, education and other industries in Southeast
Asia, including designing the hyper-converged architecture solution
of the Ministry of Finance of Thailand, building the electronic payment
system of Monetary Authority of Singapore, designing the software
and hardware integration scheme of the network security system
of the Ministry of Finance of Laos, and building the software and
hardware service system of the intelligent campus system of Ahmad
Yani of Indonesia.

With excellent cloud service capability and digital application solution
capability, VSTECS’ Branches in Southeast Asia won numerous
awards. VSTECS (Malaysia) was awarded the Best Distributor of
Veeam. VSTECS (Malaysia) became Alibaba Cloud Distributor. With its
leading position in the market and extensive network of partners, it has
become the best distributor of Dell in South Asia in 2021. VSTECS
(Philippines) was awarded the title of “VMware’s Most Valuable Partner
in Southeast Asia of the Year”. VSTECS (Thailand) was awarded the
titles of FY21 Best Distribution Solution Award and FY21 Best Data
Center and Computing Award.

.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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14 VSTECS Holdings Limited

VSTECS (Philippines) and TCL have entered into a strategic
partnership. Together with TCL, VSTECS will promote its mobile
phones, tablets and other audio devices to provide local consumers
with the latest technology products which enrich their quality life.

In recent years, the Group has strengthened the cloud computing
and digital transformation business planning, with a view of providing
enterprise customers with full-life cycle services and a full-region,
full-industry, full-product and full-cycle product system. The Group
provided comprehensive cloud-to-end information system solutions
and construction services for customers in various industries, and
freed customers from tedious IT infrastructure management with
strong resource supply capacity, resource reserve capacity and
diversified technical support capacity, helping enterprise managers to
focus on operation and innovation, thus achieving cost reduction and
efficiency improvement.

Actively planned the innovation industry and
continuously enhanced innovation

The year 2021 is the first year of the implementation of China’s global
IT innovation, and marks an opportunity year for the industry. VSTECS
has frequently won large orders in the basic hardware, basic software,
and industrial application software of IT innovation industry. The Group
continued to cooperate deeply with many mainstream IT innovation
manufacturers such as Huawei, HC3, Inspur and Lenovo, as well as
head security suppliers such as Qi An Xin and Hillstone to provide
customers with the best enterprise-level application solutions.

VSTECS held the recommendation conference for channels of Haier
IT application innovative products jointly with Haier (Haier Smart
Interconnection). VSTECS further expanded the cooperation in the IT
application innovation field with Haier based on the solid foundation
through concerted efforts.

As an important member in the IT application innovation industrial
chain, VSTECS entered into strategic cooperation with the leading
domestic unified storage manufacturer, Beijing iCloud Innovation
Science & Technology Co., Ltd., formally becoming the national
general agency of iCloud Innovation to provide security guarantee and
innovation for users.

Annual Report 2021
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VSTECS held the signing ceremony of the strategic cooperation with
Shenzhen Mulang Cloud Data Co., Ltd. The alliance will play a key
role in promoting the rapid development of the cloud data backup
disaster recovery market, and jointly promote the development of the
IT application innovation industry.

In December, VSTECS entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
with Changsha Jemo Integrated Circuit Design Co., Ltd. (“‘Jemo”)
to actively promote the business development of GPU. VSTECS will
make contributions to the ecological system construction of China’s
IT application innovation industry through in-depth cooperation with
Jemo. The two parties will grasp the opportunities to jointly promote
the prosperous development of the national IT application innovation
industry.

Strong R&D strength makes VSTECS stood out in the industry
with continuous innovation. In the prize-awarding ceremony of the
best listing company of the Greater China in the Guruclub Global
Investment Carnival 2021, the Group was honored as the Most
Innovative Listing Company. As the leading developer of high-
tech product channels and integrated service provider of technical
proposals in Asia Pacific, the Group has stood out in the selection of
the most innovative listing company for two consecutive years, which
fully displays the continuous innovative capability of the Group, the
high recognition of the cloud computing capability of VSTECS by the
capital market in the recent year, and the re-recognition of its capability
of multi-dimension R&D, innovation and solutions such as multi-cloud
management solutions and self-developed SaaS product innovation.

The year of 2021 witnessed the endeavor, diligence, joy and
happiness of all the employees of VSTECS, as well as the growth
and progress of the Group. In 2022, all the employees of VSTECS
will continue to make steady progress and make concerted efforts to
gradually create more resplendence from the new starting point, with
the lofty expectations on the future.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION

XERAXARKESG R

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base.
The Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and
Laos. The three main businesses are Enterprise Systems, Consumer
Electronics and Cloud Computing. The Enterprise Systems segment
designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure for companies, while the
Consumer Electronics segment and the Cloud Computing Segment provide
various finished IT products and cloud computing solutions and services
to customers. Leading IT vendors such as Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP,
Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft,
Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of over
50,000 channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have
established, through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging
from individuals, small and medium enterprises to large corporations and
government entities who have been serviced by our regional resellers over
the past 30 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 50,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group has recorded another record high in revenue. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$78,335,446,000
(2020: HK$69,961,881,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$3,639,069,000 (2020: HK$3,127,313,000).
Operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$1,661,212,000 (2020: HK$1,420,354,000). Net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$1,314,026,000 (2020:
HK$1,067,580,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK92.74 cents (2020: HK75.54 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the enterprise systems segment increased
by 6.8% to HK$43,709,422,000, contributing 55.8% of the total Group
revenue. Revenue from the consumer electronics segment increased by
18% to HK$32,282,472,000, contributing 41.2% of the total Group revenue.
Revenue from the cloud computing segment increased by 39.3% to
HK$2,343,552,000, contributing 3% of the total Group revenue.

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed well in
the year ended 31 December 2021. During the year, revenue generated
in North Asia increased by 12% to HK$61,935,994,000, contributing 79%
of the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East Asia increased by
12% to HK$16,399,452,000, contributing 21% of the total Group revenue.
The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order
to provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified
product lines now include Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP, Apple, Seagate,
AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco,
Asus and many more.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEEENWR DN (&)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which
the Group operates as well as others that are common to most if not all
other businesses. The directors have established a policy to ensure that
significant risks which may adversely affect the Group’s performance and
ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may present
positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored, and managed on
a continuous basis.

The Group has been closely monitoring any potential impact of the
coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak on the Group’s businesses
and will keep evaluating the impact as situation continues to evolve and
further information may become available.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 3 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.
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Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products and network will enable us to continue
to drive growth for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to
increase market shares as well as the range of products and services
offered. This will enable the Group to continue to focus on growth in all
business segments.

Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand our
business into consumer electronics and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$3,247,498,000 (2020: approximately HK$3,559,192,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$6,278,318,000 (2020: approximately HK$6,750,812,000).
The net debt to total asset ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents divided by total assets, was 0.09 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: 0.11).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWR D (&)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded total current assets
of approximately HK$29,955,056,000 (2020: approximately
HK$27,226,513,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$22,529,574,000 (2020: approximately HK$22,392,619,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the total
current liabilities, was approximately 1.33 times as at 31 December 2021
(2020: approximately 1.22 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$6,826,286,000 as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$7,911,430,000 as at 31 December 2021.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand
baht and Indonesian rupiah.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht and
Indonesian rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had certain financial assets pledged for
financial liabilities and a building pledged against secured mortgage loan as
set out in notes 3.4 and 21 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BB wWR DN (&)

Employees ==

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 4,199 (2020: 3,414) full tme R_-_T - —F+-_A=+—H XEBEH
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SEGRETARY
EERAFIRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 60, is one of the founders of
the Group and is the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr.
Li is also the director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall management and strategic positioning of the
Group. Mr. Li graduated from Tsinghua University
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and a
Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986.

Mr. Li is the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 50, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the
director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall
financial management of the Group. Mr. Ong holds
a Bachelor Degree in Economics from University
College London and a Master Degree in Analysis,
Design & Management of Information Systems
from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

|
7/)

Analysts. Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of the Company.

22 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Mr. LI Yue, aged 33, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012 and is currently the Vice
President — Channel Sales of VSTECS (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for sales and distribution in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the University
of Chicago in the United States of America. Mr. Li
is also a CFA charterholder. He is a member of the
CFA Institute and the Hong Kong Society of Financial
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 52, is an Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of
America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience
in personal computer and semiconductor industry.
Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice President —
Product Management of VSTECS (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served as the
distribution director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of the

distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. GU Sanjun, aged 51, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in June 2021.
Mr. Gu has extensive experience in the field of
Information Technology and has accumulated 13
years experience of operation in the Group. Mr. Gu
had served as the general manager of the software
/ department of the Group from 2000 to 2008 and

subsequently rejoined the Group in 2016. Mr. Gu

currently is the chief executive officer in the Greater

China Region of the Group and is responsible for the

overall business development and achieving the Company’s strategic goal

in the PRC. Prior to that, Mr. Gu had served in different large enterprises in
China such as Guangzhou Suntek Technology ( & /M1 A7) , Ingram
Micro International (China) (ZL BB (R El) ) and Founder Group (3t K75
IE£E) . Mr. Gu graduated from the Beijing University of Technology in the
PRC with a Bachelor Degree in Applied Mathematics.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERATWERERE (&)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. XIA Bin, aged 45, appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in October
2020. Mr. Xia obtained his qualification as a lawyer
in the People’s Republic of China in 2001. Mr. Xia
obtained a Bachelor of Law from Luoyang Institute
of Technology (now known as Henan University
of Science and Technology) in 1999 and a degree
of Master of Law from China University of Political
Science and Law in 2008. Mr. Xia has extensive legal
-~ in-house experience in corporations and enterprises.

Mr. Xia is currently a deputy general manager and
secretary of the board of directors of Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain
Management Ltd. (R T8 R @M E AR (D B IR A &) (“Shenzhen Eternal
Asia”), whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Shenzhen
Eternal Asia is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Xia is also a
director of Yunnan Ben Yuan Payment Management Co., Ltd. (EfE AT
NEEHRAR), acompany principally engaged in internet payment and
financial services. Mr. Xia is also a non-executive Director of Trigiant Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Lee Isaiah, aged 54,
appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in March 2021. Mr. Cheung graduated
from the Queen’s University in Kingston, Canada
with a Bachelor of Science degree with honours
in Computer Engineering in 1990. He has over
30 years of extensive experience in the field of
Information Technology. Mr. Cheung joined Microsoft
as the Vice President of Consumer and Device
Sales Group in the Greater China Region from
2011 to 2019. Prior to joining Microsoft, Mr. Cheung had served at various
positions at Hewlett-Packard (“HP”), including the Vice President of the
Personal Systems Group in HP China, General Manager of Solution Partners
Organization (SPO) China and Director of Mobile Business from 1995 to
2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 67, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 25 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li is
now an independent non-executive director of Yantai
North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and Qianhai Health
Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
members of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM Hin Chi, aged 58, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014. Mr. Lam graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in finance, auditing
and accounting. Mr. Lam currently is an executive director of Qianhai Health
Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves
as the Chairman of Audit Committee and members of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERATWERERE (&)

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 66, appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in May 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from
Peking University with Ph.D. degree in economics.
He is currently the vice chairman of China Trustee
Association, council member of China Wealth
Management 50 Forum (CWM50) and vice chairman
of the academic committee of CWM50.

From 1985 to 1990, Mr. Wang joined the National Economic System
Reform Committee (NESRC) as director of the Research Office, later he
was promoted to be department director. From 1990 to 1994, he acted
as deputy director, executive deputy director of Beijing New-Tech Industry
Development Zone. From 1994 to 1998, he was appointed to many
important positions, such as director, deputy general manager of Hong Kong
Jing-Tai Industrial (Group) Company Limited, general manager and chairman
of board of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Finance Company Limited, board director
and president of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Securities Company Limited, and
the board chairman of Hong Kong Jing-Tai Industry Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Wang was also the executive director and vice president of
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited. From 1998 to present, Mr. Wang acts
as president and vice chairman of Beijing International Trust and Investment
Corporation Limited which is now transformed to Beijing International Trust
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Wang has a long time dedication to economic research and financial
enterprise management, so he accumulates a rich and sound experience
in finance, trusts, securities and investment funds and enjoys a good
reputation in those areas. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in many
different industries and areas, such as variety of investments, merging
and acquisition, debt issuances, restructure, and IPO etc. Mr. Wang also
serves as the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. LI Yi, aged 47, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2021. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor Degree in
Economics. He has been the first batch of traders
who have the qualifications of first-level traders in
national carbon emission trading market in the PRC.
He currently is a director and chief researcher of the
Green Digital Development Research Center of the
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences. He also has
part-time roles as distinguished researcher of the

National Governance Research Institute of Tsinghua University, a member
of the Information and Communication Economics Expert Committee of
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, and the
lecture professor of the Graduate School of the Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences. He was also awarded as 2010 Top Ten New Talents in information
technology industry in China.

Mr. Li also acted as an independent non-executive director in several listed
companies in the PRC, including New Guomai Digital Culture Co., Ltd. at
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from 2014 to 2020, Transfar Zhilian Co.,
Ltd. at the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from 2015 to 2020 and Huizhou
Speed Wireless Technology Co., Ltd. at the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
from 2016 to 2019. Mr. Li also serves as the members of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Company Secretary

Ms. YUE Cheuk Ying, aged 41, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in September
2011 and is responsible for the secretarial matters of
the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
in Public and Social Administration and a Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She joined the
Group in 2009.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR - MEREIHS

The Group is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report” or the “Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. The ESG Report is to highlight the Group’s approaches and strategies
in pursuit of sustainable development. The Group would also like to take
this opportunity to thanks all stakeholders who have contributed to this
sustainability journey with us and present the ESG performance to all our
stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINICPLES

This ESG Report has been prepared according to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (‘ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules from HKEx. The Report covers the overall
performance, policies and practices of the Group’s business and operations
in terms of its environmental and social responsibilities. The Report is
based on the four reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency. To serve the best interest of our readers, we conducted a
materiality assessment through the help with our stakeholders to select the
key ESG issues concerning with our business operation, which are covered
in the later part. This ESG Report mainly focuses on the aspects that have
identified as material and relevant to the Group’s business and its key
stakeholders.

We mentioned the social KPIs which related to the performance of the
Group in employment, labour standards, supply chain management, training
activities, community investment, etc. We computed the environmental key
performance indicators (‘KPIs”) based on our emission and waste produced
in our operation process and also the daily activities in the office, referring
from the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules
and the standards of Greenhouse Gas Protocol, which were the foundation
for the measurement of our ESG performance, in terms of carbon emission,
resource usage, waste generation and so on. As this is the first year that
we start implement quantitative measurement, there are no applicable
comparative figures.

Moreover, the Report aims at providing the readers with a comprehensive
and objective view of our ESG management efficacy, and as such, the
Group is committed to revealing the statistics and numbers to the best of
our knowledge.

For ease of reference, an index is available in the last chapter of the Report
for the readers, regarding the locations of KPIs within the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report focuses mainly on the aspects that have been identified as
material and relevant to the Group’s businesses and its key stakeholders for
the financial year from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 (‘this Year”
or “the Reporting Period”). These cover our three main operation segments,
namely, the Enterprise Systems segment, the Consumer Electronics
segment and the Cloud Computing segment.

ESG GOVERNANCE

To lead the company to become a socially and environmentally responsible
company, a solid ESG governance structure is essential. The Board
acknowledges its role in identifying the ESG risks and opportunities in the
Group and it also has been involved in the determination of the major ESG
strategies and planning of the ESG related goals. The Group has always
incorporated considerations of the environmental, social and governance
aspects into our operation to fulfill our commitment to creating sustainable
value for stakeholders and being a good corporate citizen. We aim to make
positive impacts on our environment and community while upholding our
philosophy that sustainable development is rooted in our core business
practices, our relationship with stakeholders, as well as our environmental
performances. The different sections contained in our Report reveal our
management approaches in environmental and social aspects accordingly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e RER®RE (&)

BOARD’S ESG RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges the overall ESG responsibility. The Board is
responsible for setting the Group’s ESG strategies and reporting and for
evaluating and determining the Group’s ESG related risks. The Group
realised that ESG development is a key of the success, not only the
Board would involve in the ESG responsibility, our management team and
employees are also responsible to the ESG development of the Group. We
encourage each of us to participate in the sustainable development and
express opinion. Participation from each department can smoothen the
communication between the Board with different department, this will let
all department within the Group have a clearer picture of the ESG strategy
of the Group. The Group know it has the responsibility to develop the
environmental goals in order to have a better performance in the future.
ESG performance is measured, reviewed and reported to the management
regularly for continuous improvement.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Taking the opinions of the stakeholders seriously is the direction of the
Group. The Group believes that understanding the views of its stakeholders
lays a solid foundation for the long-term growth and success of the Group,
SO we maintain an open and honest relationship with our stakeholders.

As a leading distributor of ICT products in Asia, the Group strives to
maximise the long-term benefits of all our stakeholders by continuously
communicating with them and effectively balancing their respective
expectations and needs in order to achieve sustainable development of
the Company. Our key stakeholders include employees, clients, suppliers,
management team,
etc.

investors, government, environment and community,

We use different channels to gather the opinions from various stakeholders,
we hold regular meetings with all stakeholders and have different tailor
different communication channels for each stakeholder, for example, we will
conduct site visit to our suppliers, we have a service hotline for our clients
and we hold press conferences for our investors. Through the different
channels, we collect their opinions and give our responses.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Through the communication with our employees, the Group realised that
our employees focus on the welfare, career path, training provided to them
and a healthy working environment. The Group take this into consideration
and provided a healthy working environment, a competitive remuneration
package and also the discretionary bonus by reference to individual and
Group’s performance, in response to their opinions. Different from our
employees, our management team focuses on the performance of the
company, and whether the company’s goals and strategies have been
achieved. This is more or less similar to the Group concerns and the Group
will make sure that the goals and strategies set by the management are duly
communicated to all the staff which can enhance the achievement of the
goals.

Our clients are concerned about the product and services quality and safety
as well as the customer relationships and privacy protection. In response,
we provide a high quality of product and service, in additionally we have a
special team to provide after-sales services to them.

The Group also pays attention to our relationship with suppliers. Suppliers
of different brands are handled by a designated project management team
to ensure a close relationship with each supplier of integrity and fair dealing.
Our investors concerned about the business development and prospect
of the Group and also the returns on investment, we clearly understand
their concerns. In response to the concerns of our investors, our Group
management will have regular meetings with them and we will also engage
professional parties to explore potential investors in the benefit to the Group.

To make sure the group has complied with all the laws and regulations,
we will review and update the government and regulatory body’s policies
regularly to respond to the Government — one of our stakeholders’ concerns,
that is to comply with the laws and regulations. We think this is beneficial to
the Group and we are happy to do so.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE-HEK

BRmE (&)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group has obtained the views of our key
stakeholders including the management team, employees, clients, suppliers
and investors regarding the Group’s material issues and sustainability
strategies. After a series of managerial-level meetings and the discussion,
several issues were identified. The Group has assessed those important
ESG topics and produced the following materiality matrix to clarify the ESG

issues that concern our business most.

Impact to External Stakeholders
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE - HERER/RRS (E)

Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: BFHB2RTE:

Environmental

BB
1 Air pollutant and carbon emission
JE& R M B HE AR
2 Sewage and waste
JEE 7K I EE W)
3 Energy and electricity consumption
BEIR B B
4 Water consumption
KB
5 Packaging material consumption
BEMEERE
6 Significant impacts on the environment, such as noise, odour, pollution, ecological imbalance, species extinction and

resource depletion.
HIRENTEZE RS BR SR EERXE MERERERMLIE -
7 Risks brought by climate issues, such as physical risk (extreme weather events and rise of temperature) and transition
risk (policy, legal and market risk)
RIEEESROMER  myERR (B RXREFRRR L) RBEERRE (BER 22 RmE5RR)

Social
e
8 Compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
HO R E BEMEEA TERE AKERME TERE G RERUREMF & REF
9 Employees’ health and workplace safety
EEMRERIESAZE
10 Improvement in job skills and development opportunities
RATERERERES
12 Stability and sustainability of supply chain
HEEn BT KA AN
15 Product market demand and innovation*
Em i 5% K el F
19 Contribution to society, such as donation, care, conservation and education

HEaE MER B RERKE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e RER®RE (&)

Governance

&R

11 Preventing child labour and forced labour
TERTE T Ra&Hl T

13 Supply chain environmental risk management
HEEERIEE TR

14 Product quality and safety*
EmEERer”

16 Customer relation and protection
BEPRERRE

17 Intellectual property rights*
AN R

18 Behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, and the mechanisms and training activities to

prevent such behaviours*

BES B HMGF RBRSTRURIER BT RS R E TS B

* The most important topics to the Group

As illustrated above, the ESG topics of highest priority to the Group are
Product Quality and Safety, Product Market Demand and Innovation,
Intellectual Property Rights and Corruption Behaviour with the Prevention
Policy.

Because of our business nature, our internal and external stakeholders are
focused more on the social and governance issues than the environmental
issues that are less related to our business nature. For the social sector,
our stakeholders focus on the Product Market Demand and Innovation, as
an IT trading company, we also care about the innovation and demand of
our product. We have cooperated with lots of well-established and well-
known suppliers that provide us with high quality products, and believe that
the demand for IT products will be stable. In addition, we keep discussing
with our suppliers about the new idea of the IT products such that they can
provide trendy products to our customers.

For the governance sector, our stakeholders focused on the Product’s
Quality and Safety and the Intellectual Property Rights. These factors are
very important to the operation of the Group. The Group has policy and
regulation on monitoring the safety of the product. Once we have discovered
the safety and quality problems, we will inform the suppliers immediately and
find a solution to solve the problems by returning the products or renewing
the products. We also take the Intellectual Property Rights issue as a very
serious matter, as innovation and ideas are key inputs of IT products. We
have strict regulations on supervision of the product that is not yet on the
market.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Apart from the product-related sector, Corruption Prevention is also a topic
that our stakeholders think is an important issue and the Board has the
same idea as our stakeholders. In view of this, the Group has a stringent
Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our business partners
to follow strictly. Moreover, all employees are also required to attend anti-
corruption training every year to remind them of the importance of integrity.

ESG STRATEGIES

The Group’s business nature is focusing on the ICT products, channel
development and integrated service providers of technology solutions in the
Asia Pacific region. As compared with the manufacturing-based business,
we are mainly engaged in the development of technologies with fewer
environmental concerns. But we still hope to take part in environmental
protection activities and fulfil our corporate social responsibility. We will
put additional efforts into social development, such as employment and
development policies, supplier selection, safety and health issues, product
responsibility, etc.

On the environmental issues, although we emit and pollute less due to our
business nature, we have set some goals in terms of energy and resource
use so as to participate in the sustainable development of the environment.
The Group has set a number of environmental targets to help reduce
emissions and the use of natural resources, such as the usage of electricity,
which is important in the IT industry. The goals mainly relate to air emissions,
waste reduction, energy and water conservation.

We understand our energy and resource usage is very minimal given our
[T trading business nature thus setting a specific target on decreases in
carbon emission may not be meaningful to the society. However, we also
understand the importance of its impact on sustainable environmental
development. We will continue to encourage and ensure the efficient use
of resources in our operation process to save energy and reduce GHG
emission as much as possible. We will keep putting effort in protecting the
environment and we are planning to work with our suppliers on handling
the electronic wastes in a more proper way. We hope to develop a specific
target on reducing waste and emission in the near future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous community
atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote long-term
corporate benefit. Through the areas of our employment and labour
practices, operational practices and social involvement, we establish a
mutually beneficial relationship with our internal and external stakeholders.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
Product Quality and Safety

To provide a high quality of products and services to our customers, the
Group carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. The Group
will review the specifications of each product provided by the suppliers
before launching to our customers to ensure that each product provided to
customers is up to their standards and requirements.

As a comprehensive distributor, we endeavour to provide not only high
quality products to our customers but also a wide range of value-added
services to our suppliers and customers. We provide product return and
exchange procedures for our customers and we will report and provide
feedback on any complaints about the quality of the products to our
suppliers for their further review and improvement.

During the Reporting Year, no products were subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons, nor any complaints received.

Privacy and Data Protection

In addition, the Group strives to protect the personal data and privacy
of every customer. All the employees are obligated to retain in highly
confidential any information obtained in connection with their employment,
such as client information and supplier information.

We strictly confine the usage of the collected information for the purposes
we specified in our contracts, and we make sure to use such information
responsibly. We require each and every employee to follow the guidance
related to the privacy and data protection. Employees who have access to
or are in control of such information have the full responsibility to protect the
information from unauthorised disclosure or use.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group also pays high attention to the protection of the interest of
intellectual property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to sell
its products, we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and conditions
on the sale of the products and a distributor agreement will be signed by
both parties to ensure that the Group has the right and authority to sell the
products on behalf of the suppliers.

In addition, the Group pays close attention to infringements in the market
to prevent any infringements (e.g., counterfeiting of trademarks); this is to
prevent and protect the Group and the others from getting into trouble.

Customer Opinion and Complaints

The Group cherishes the opinions of our customers as they serve as
a direction of our improvement. Moreover, whenever complaints are
received, we shall take them very seriously, investigate them in detail by the
responsible party and report to the management team. We hope to provide
our customers with a very good experience.

During the Reporting Year, no complaints were received and we complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact to us,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and noted
no incident of information leakage reported during the Reporting Year.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are one of the key stakeholders to the Group who cannot be
independent of production materials. Hence, we value our relationship with
suppliers and are actively developing a sustainable supply chain that meets
the Group’s ethical, environmental, health and safety standards.

RE -dERERKRSE (&)

A E R
AEENREERRENIRERT @ 22
HoBEAREEBHEIUREEERZH
S RS EEERZ GRR R R R M
EEETER EHTRBREIOHE WS UE
RASEESKEHERHEER 2B R
XA

O AREBETBEEIT S LNRETR
UBEERRETR(WREBE) KM
By Lb A58 S 7K 52 B Ko H b 5 BA AR ©

EFERERF

AEEPBREFPHNER SEERIMICGE
W metd BRMRBREHFE - REF
HMEAEEENMIETHARNE YREEHE
BHE - RMFEREFPIEHELDER -

RBEFER BEKIEMRF M
BTHAEHAMBEATENHBELIRZN
EROBREARR (EAER (FLE)E
By  mEREEMNEEREES-

HEEE R

HERRAKEENIERNEZ — HMAW
AEMHMIRAEED Bt RMAERHA
HEPMHER THEEERTAAKEER
RE RERLEREZAFEMRER-

EHERERERAE —T- =% 37



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

As a leading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms a
very essential part of the Group. We have over 300 product suppliers from
all around the world, including China, Philippines, Thailand, etc. Below are
the details of the supplier’s distribution.

No. of suppliers
HEFHE

Singapore N
10%

Thailand %
1%

Indonesia ElfE
5%

Philippines JEEE
17%

HK &8
3%

The Group implements an efficient supply chain management system that
strengthens the role of different parties between suppliers, distributors and
retailers, and ensures high quality of services and products are delivered to
our customers. In order to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of our
supply chain management, different brands of suppliers are managed by our
designated project managers so that they can take full care of each supplier
to provide smooth delivery of products to different parties. Our team will
have regular meetings with the suppliers.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as Huawei, HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to
name a few. The majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and
regulations in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard. The
Group emphasises the relationship and communications with the suppliers
to promote sustainable development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

We also have a comprehensive process in selecting and engaging suppliers
with integrity and fair treatment. We always take into consideration such
as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality, recall policy, market
conditions and demands, etc. The Group communicates with the suppliers
and distributors regularly to maintain a good relationship with them and
review and monitor the performance of the suppliers and provide feedback
to them from time to time.

Besides the above selection criteria mentioned, the ethical performance and
their participation in corporate social responsibility are also our concerns.
We have to keep monitoring their performance and corporate social
responsibility so that to make sure that our suppliers are up to their social
standards. We hope to cooperate with the suppliers who have the same
vision as us.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable. The
Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There are anti-corruption and
anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the employees. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

The Group has a Compliance Department to monitor the compliance issue
and to ensure that all employees are aware of the importance of integrity
and honesty as the Group’s core values. The Group has a stringent Code
of Conduct that requires the employees and our business partners to
follow strictly. There are two aspects in the Group’s Code of Conduct. One
is related to employees. All newly joined employees are required to sign
the Employee’s Handbook and an Integrity Declaration and attend anti-
corruption training. All employees are also required to attend anti-corruption
training every year to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for
our business partners, such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to
anticorruption are included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to
ensure both parties are fully aware of their responsibilities.

The Group also has a whistle-blowing policy that provides channels for
employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action. All the
information collected and received will be kept confidential and the Group’s
internal audit department will conduct an internal investigation and report
to senior management. Also, we have anti-corruption and anti-bribery
guidelines provided to all employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e RER®RE (&)

During the Reporting Period, the Group, its directors and employees were
not involved in any legal cases concerning corrupt practices. We did not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
our operating areas, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong, that had a notable impact on the Group relating to
health and safety in relation to products and services provided.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards talents as one of its core competencies and has
optimised the use of human resources through a dedicated recruitment
process and appraisal system.

The Group believes that employees are the most important and valuable
assets contributing to the key to success and sustainable growth of the
Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies with all the relevant
labour laws and regulations under respective jurisdictions. The Group treats
all the employees equally that their employment, remuneration, promotion
or dismissal will not be affected by their social identities such as race,
nationality, gender, religion, age and marital status.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefits packages to attract and retain talents. The
compensation package is reviewed and adjusted on a yearly basis based on
individual performance and the market situation. Employees are also entitled
to a discretionary bonus, share options and Company’s shares to recognise
their contributions to the Group by reference to the Group’s performance
as well as individual performance. Other benefits include medical insurance,
paid and maternity leaves and retirement schemes are also provided.

At the end of Reporting Period, our Group hired a total of 4,199 employees,
of which full-time employees are around 98% (4,115) and part-time
employees have a number of 84. Across our business portfolio, females
accounted for 48% of the total labor. We are glad to see that the gender
gap in the Group is small and we will keep this phenomenon. Regarding
age, most of our employees concentrate in 31-40, accounting for around
52% of the total number. This is a positive for the Group as the employees
at this age are often experienced and productive. For staff retainment, we
would develop a strategy accordingly.
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Below are the Employee Statistics:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE - HERER/RRS (E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

LOCATION
HE
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During the period, we saw an 18.5% of our employees leaving the Group.
Most of them are aged 30 or below and the turnover rate for the age group
is 22.8%. This is significant and has aroused the attention of management.
The Group then came up with policies and plans to retain the talents, for
example, to provide them more training so as to develop their potential
and let them feel being valued by the company. We treasure all employees
of our company and hope to give them a good working atmosphere and
experience.

Our Group has a balanced figure in terms of gender, which is a sign of
gender equality, and the turnover rate by gender is also fairly balanced, with
58% of departing employees being male and 42% female. The turnover rate
was 21% for men and 16% for women.

Below are the other Turnover Statistics presenting in Graph (Turnover
Rate Calculation: Employees of certain category leaving/Total number of e
mployees in the category):
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE - HERER/RRS (E)

AGE DISTRIBUTION
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

TURNOVER RATE - LOCATION
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During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-compliance BB & R - A £ E I E T (& & EHE R
with the relevant employment laws and regulations. BAREEREBRBNEBER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strongly opposes child and forced labour, which violate the
international labour conventions. The Group strictly complies with the
relevant rules and regulations in relevant jurisdictions relating to child and
forced labour. The Group strictly prohibits the employment of child and
forced labour in any of our operations. All the employees and job applicants
enjoy equal opportunities and fair treatment.

The human resource department is required to do background check on
all applicants and every potential job applicant is required to complete
the employment application form, which will be reviewed by the Human
Resource Department to ensure the information provided is accurate.

We form a voluntary employment relationship with each of our employees
and working hours exceeding the regulatory limits is not allowed. We also
promote such concepts within the supply chain so as to protect the well-
being of the labour of the entire community. We hope to spread out the
ideas of restricting child and forced labour. If unfortunately, child labour
is found, their employment will be terminated immediately and the HR
department will report the case to the management and legal action will be
taken.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recognise any material
irregularities in the laws and regulations relating to any labour standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e RER®RE (&)

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places occupational health and safety in the first place. In light
of that, sound occupational health and safety policies are essential, not
only for employees and the Group but also for our customers and other
stakeholders. In compliance with relevant laws and regulations of mainland
China and Hong Kong, the Group has formulated a control system for labour
safety and sanitation.

Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group is
committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment and
offering occupational safety training to employees. We have provided
guidelines for warehouse workers when they are using the electronic reach
trucks, in order to raise awareness on occupational safety and health.
Warning notices are also placed around the warehouse for reminding the
employees of the careful operation of electric reach trucks.

Also, we engaged a professional cleaning company to disinfect the carpet
in the office area, wash the air-conditioning regularly, especially during
the pandemic, regular sterilization is done around the whole office area.
Moreover, other than bottle drinking water, we have installed a water
treatment system to filter and improve the quality of our drinking water.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any work-related
fatality cases or any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
In the past 3 years, the Group’s operations recorded zero fatalities.

Apart from workplace safety, a healthy lifestyle is promoted to the
employees. The Group organises annual dinner, Christmas party and
Chinese New Year lunch every year to share the joy and happiness amongst
the employees and enhance their sense of belonging, some activities have
been prohibited during the pandemic.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group treasures talents and encourages employees to grow both
intellectually and professionally.

The Group considers development and training is one of the important
elements contributing to the success of the Group. The Group has
formulated training plans for employees, including onboard orientation,
on the job internal training, attending seminars and soft skill training. Our
training covers products knowledge, sales and marketing, operational skills,
workflow management skills, leadership and management skills.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has organised some training for our
employees, 32% of our employees have joined the training offered by the
Group, with the statistic listed below:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e RER®RE (&)

Among our staff, 34% of female employees and 30% of male employees
attended the training held, the average training hours of female and male
are 26 and 24 hours, respectively. For the grade of trained staff, 84% of
management have joined the training course offered with the average 15
hours of training, and 31% of the ordinary staff have training amount to an
average of 25 hours of training.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting
and engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve
harmonious and sustainable development between the enterprise and the
community.

Especially after the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group organised
emergency procurement from China as soon as possible, donated RMB1.9
million (HKD2.2 million) to Hubei, and donated a large number of masks
and protective clothing to Beijing, Chongaging and other places. In addition
to donating materials, the Group subsequently provided the infrastructure
construction and IT technical support of dozens of hospitals in Beijing, Inner
Mongolia, etc. The logistics company of the Group together with its partners
provided emergency equipment transportation for local hospitals in Hubei.

The Group has also put efforts into the education and health sectors. We
hope to help different parties around the world to have a better life and also
protect our employees. During the reporting area, the Group attended some
charity work and donations through our offices in different regions. The
following are the details of the community investments made by the Group:

ERMWE IS 34%9’9?1&1@%&30%5‘%
MEB2MTHBINEI ZEREED
FHMEIERD %J26&24/J\E$y HEIE
THBAME 84%WERE2 M T AIIEH
W FIRIE - FHERINEE - 31%H) & &
B T a2 3l 65 8z 2 F H B EF I R s -

HtERE

ERABEEZGXAR AEB —EXHL
SENEBREELRY UEBROCEEMREZ
F'EJE’ﬁD‘“&—H B¥R-

LERERBERER AEEREARREE
MBTTPERBESYME RAAILBRARE
1,900,0007T (2,200,000 7T) * WAL R EE
REMEIBEAEBEOERDER -BRIBRENE
S REBEBERALER ARG S BT RER
R ERMER &éﬂﬂ&&miHVKE@m%
mAREREAERH RIS BRE X
SRR -

FEBNEHERBREEZEN -BHMF L
EOHAZHOARB FEFNETE AR
RERMOEE -NMEME - AEHFE B
BMETRAMEBENRSEES2NT —LEET
ERBE AEBEMELERIRENFB N
T

HKD
Description it BT
The Group's offices in Beijing, Guangzhou, Shanghai, Shenyang, AEEZEILR EM - & LEZHAORERE 3,560,000
etc, have joined the “workers’ unions” of the local governments to S IIA T EHMBAN A | ABRERFAEE
maximise the benefits for employees (The Chinese trade union is &4 (FFE T & 2 — (& k7§ 2 \E%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ
a working-class mass organization led by the Communist Party of B8 BTN T ARG RAM -H A8 M
China and voluntarily united by employees. It is the bridge and link T AZEMBRLAE BRNENESHE
between the party and the workers, an important social pillar of x4 ek 8 K T AR EFZFEHRE )
the state power, and a representative of the rights and interests of
members and workers.)
Provision of epidemic prevention materials for employees during the &5 AlE B IREHZEYE 109,000
epidemic
Donation for PPRCV — Parish Pastoral Council for Responsible Voting  APPRCV—# 2 & TR ZE =& H 5 45,000
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Description

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE - HERER/RRS (E)

HKD
B

Donation of Sound Systems to PNP Eastern Police District

Bandung Orphanage (food and health needs)

NTT - Flood Disaster (food and blanket)

Tangerang Orphanage (food, bath and washing needs)

Donated Dell PowerEdge R240 Server with Dell Memory Upgrade
and Windows Server 2019 Standard Edition to Chulalongkorn Cancer
Immunotherapy Excellence Center & CU Systems Biology Center,
Division of Research Affairs, Faculty of Medicine Chulalongkorn
University to support the research and development in cancer
immunotherapy innovative treatments.

Donated Thomas electric motorcycle to Commandant of Military
Technical Training School for the school affairs and to create
educational opportunities for the students.

Donated Thomas electric motorcycle to Royal Thai Army 11 to
support the unit’s mission.

Donated 10 sets of Computer Notebook and mouse to Krathum
Baen Hospital to be used for registration of Covid-19 vaccination in
the Ministry of Health system.

Donation related to supporting the COVID-19 Epidemic Prevention
and Project of the Ramathibodi Foundation to purchase a Philips
Respironics Trilogy Evo Ventilator (BIPAP) for treatment in chronic and
critical patients to Ramathibodi Hospital

ERNAZR (R RERER)
NTT—KE (RO REH)
Tangerangfll 52 f% (R ¥~ 008 Mok & 5k)

AR [ DR R B S A O ORI E D)
REBZGEMERL - HREBE FHED
KB B ZEREEDel Memory Upgrade
Windows Server 201912 % Hz ¥ Dell PowerEdge
R240A AR 28 » A2 RSB IE R % /A B Bl ¥ A 1)
.

MEEREFIERNHE BB ThomasE B
BERE RESREBUABLAEHRTHE -

MEEEFEESNRAFREETHEDE
HE USSR R ER -

MKrathum BaenZEfriB B10EE R ARSI LR
Z AREFEDRHEELCovid-198 B E

18 88 2 #5COVID-195% 18 b7 1% K RamathibodiZ
¢ @IEH - 5 —APhilips Respironics Trilogy
Evo Ventilator (BIPAP)& £ RamathibodiZ fx + A
RREIEE R EERA

BHERERARLT

23,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

24,000

12,000

12,000

72,000

144,000
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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HKD
Description W BT
Donation to CU Systems Biology Center, Division of Research Affairs, B3R FARUEHN A SR ERFE EHRICUE 96,000
Faculty of Medicine Chulalongkorn University to support the research #5419 £ (CU Systems Biology Center) ' A%
and development on nasal spray; ANTICOV SPRAY, which is effective £ 218 % % —ANTICOV SPRAYEUffFE - A
in preventing a variant of COVID-19 infection RIERH COVID-19% 12 i 55 Ak 2
Donation to Adult Hematologic Malignancy Fund, Ramathibodi [7]RamathibodiZBz i A MR = 14 @B E £ (Adult 174,000
Hospital Hematologic Malignancy Fund)fg 3t
Donation to CU Systems Biology Center, Division of Research Affairs, 88 T A NE I A 2R ERFREHRICUR 360,000
Faculty of Medicine Chulalongkorn University to support the research #5419 2, (CU Systems Biology Center)* A%
and development in cancer immunotherapy innovative treatments BRIERZE B LN
Sponsorship — The Opera People LTD % B —The Opera People LTD 29,000
Donation to Singapore cancer society 1B B T %7 0 By 7B % € (Singapore cancer 57,000
society)

Art Test Kit For All Employees BIEETIHMARTAIRE 54,000

4,786,000

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation in
community services, encouraging our staff to do good to their surrounding
communities by drawing their attention to diverse social and environmental
issues and organizing charitable activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

We are concerned about the environment. While maintaining the business
operation of the Group, we try to minimise our impact on the environment
and at the same time spread out the concept of sustainable development
and protecting the environment. The Group undertakes environmental
protection as part of its corporate responsibilities, and it is fully aware of
the importance of sustainable environmental development in promoting
sustainability in its operations. The Group is committed to implementing
different environmental protection measures to reduce the impacts on the
environment. We seek to respond to the sustainability issues across our
operations, from sourcing materials to office usage.

B0 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

EMISSIONS

The Group has always emphasised environmental friendliness and
reducing emissions of all kinds. As our business is mainly trading in nature,
the operations of our Group do not have significant impacts on air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group is minimal. Due to the nature
of business, the most common air emission and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions from our daily business activities are mainly generated from the
consumption of electricity and the usage of vehicles and paper in the offices
and warehouses. The Group does not produce any hazardous waste in its
operations.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, for example, the legislation
relevant to the Prevention of Harmful Effects on the Environment Caused by
Air Pollution, Noise, Vibration and Similar Phenomena.

Air and Greenhouse Gases

As the business nature of the Group is trading ICT products, the trading
operation does not involve the emission of GHG in significant quantities.
Therefore, we are not disclosing this figure. If in the future, our emissions
become larger, we will disclose and inform our stakeholders in a timely
manner.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e RER®RE (&)

The Group has no industry or car usage in the operation of our business
so we will not have stationary and mobile combustion emission, but we
discovered that the electricity usage will also generate GHG emission, as
such, we have consolidated the electricity usage data in our headquarter
— Hong Kong office, relevant statistics of GHG emission for the Reporting

AEBNEBLEPI AP RIERERA
BEHEMALTEERELRBHMRESR-BH
MER EREITFEEREREH
ABEMEARMNEL-—FTERETEND
BEHE - RENEHNEBEREBHNBERR

Period is shown as the following table: HFRT&:

Indicators Unit Total (2021)

Eig:d By B (ZB=—F)

Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 137.7

BERBHREE WS LiREE

Intensity (Per HK Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.4

RE(BEEEEER) W_atiEe (EE

Scope 1 — Stationary combustion Tonnes of COe Nil

BET — BRI WE—SEALIRE S

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil

mE(B4EE) WE-EthREE’BE

Scope 1 — Mobile combustion Tonnes of CO,e Nil

HE1 —BERNE WS LiREE

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil

nE(84EE) Mo—fiE e EE

Scope 2 Indirect Emissions Tonnes of CO,e 137.7

& [E2fE 5 R WA RbiE S

Intensity (Per HK Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.4

RE(BEEEEER) WM_atiEe (B8

Note: GHG emissions are computed based on the ESG Reporting Guide and /it BEREHRENREREE HERERE
Emission Factor from Cross-Sector Tools prepared by Greenhouse Gas HREESIRAEREZERERGENET
Protocol. FETAHMFEGTE-

The Group understands the impact brought by GHG and air emission, so we
strive to reduce the air and GHG emissions through improving our process
flow.

Solid Waste Emission

We uphold the principle of “4Rs”, namely Reduce, Reuse, Replace and
Recycle. As our business mainly focuses on IT software trading, we do not
generate waste in our production process. In our offices, we produce only
municipal waste, which is unharmful, disposed of through legal means and
collected by governmental services daily. Hence, we consider this issue
insignificant to the Group and do not report the figures here.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Wastewater

Our manufacturing process does not involve water consumption. The Group
does not have a lot of discharge to water. The wastewater of the Group
comes mainly from domestic usage from our offices. Since living wastewater
should not pose huge harm to the environment, we assume this topic
is insignificant. The Group strictly discharges wastewater into municipal
sewage pipelines for uniform treatment in accordance with the “Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers”. The Group also calls
on employees to conserve water resources.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-compliance in
emissions with the relevant environmental laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on our Group.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group only uses resources in the office and warehouse operation, and
we earnestly reduce resource consumption and improve economic efficiency.

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while endeavours
to reduce, reuse and recycle resources to prevent the unnecessary waste
of resources and minimise the impacts on the environment and natural
resources. Due to the nature of our business, the resources used by the
Group are principally attributed to electricity and paper consumed at our
offices and warehouses. Due to our business nature, our operation does
not involve the direct consumption of water and packaging materials. Water
consumption by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the
Group’s offices and warehouse only.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses, and we do
not involve large electric facilities for operation. In this report, we believe
the emission in our headquarter — Hong Kong will be the main concern, the
table below shows the electricity usage and the intensity in our headquarter
in Hong Kong during the Reporting Period:

The following table shows the figures of resource consumption in our
business operations:

£

HREAEBXBIEZEBESILE R —RAE
MAERREMRE EBPLITFTEKRALE
RRE-RARET HMABR/AEMELL
MO E A EZHTE TEEJ/T\E’;\#E%
HERMELEALTNBEERTE

TRITBEMOEBEEMREABERDH
ol

The Group Unit Total (2021)
REE By B (=ZT=—F)

Electricity consumption kWh 193,937

HE= TR B

Intensity (per HK Employee) kWh/Employee 2,000
mE(BEEBEER) FTERE &S

The Group continues its commitment to reducing energy consumption by
reminding employees to switch off their computers before leaving the office,
switch off the lighting in the conference rooms and other functional rooms
when they are not in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy-
saving mode whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep
the office temperature at 25° C so as to ensure the efficient use of the air-
conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses are limited for daily
office use as well as some printing materials such as annual/interim reports
and circulars which are required to be distributed to the shareholders. In view
of that, we consider paper and printing materials consumption attributed to
less significant to our Group. However, to save the environment, the Group
continues the efforts in reducing and recycling of paper usage, by reminding
our staff to have environmentally friendly printing and photocopying habits,
encouraging double-sided printing and scanning documents to the Group’s
server system rather than photocopying whenever possible, implementing a
password system for colour printing and separate collection of waste paper
and used envelopes for reuse and recycling. For those who are printing
materials, they will not over-print and will print on demand, and we also
encourage our readers to make use of the Company’s website.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact and use
of natural resources are considered minimal and insignificant. Nevertheless,
our Group is an endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources
as responsible corporate citizenship.

IMPACT ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL AND
NATURAL RESOURCE

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainable development
and has always regarded environmental protection as one of its key tasks.
The Group’s management acknowledges its responsibility in monitoring
environmental impacts and the use of natural resources. As a socially
responsible citizen, we are concerned about the quality of the environment.
While conducting business, we strive to minimise our impact on the
environment. Our determination to promote environmental well-being is
reflected in the introduction of our Environmental Policy.

Due to our Group’s business nature is mainly distribution of IT products,
environmental impact and use of natural resources are considered minimal.
Nevertheless, our Group is an endeavour to protect the environment and
natural resources as responsible corporate citizenship. The Group minimised
the impact on the environment through our daily life activities, for example,
switching off the computers, lights and electronic devices when we finish
using them, bringing our own cup to drink water instead of drinking plastic
bottled water, etc. We all participate in protecting the environment through
the small actions we take in our daily lives.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is an issue that troubles a multitude of corporations and
countries around the world. The Group is not likely to be unaffected and
will not leave ourselves unguarded. We have, apart from reducing GHG
emissions, developed adaptive measures.

According to the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”)
framework, climate-related risks can be categorised as physical risks and
transition risks. Physical risks can be acute or chronic in climate patterns.
Transition risks can be evolved from transition to a lower-carbon economy.

Due to our Group’s business nature is mainly distribution of IT products,
the supply chain may be disrupted by extreme weather events, such as
typhoon. Any decrease in capacity of timely delivery may result in a loss of
revenue.

The Group has over 300 suppliers in China, Hong Kong, Philippines,
Indonesia, Thailand and Singapore, etc. The diverse supplier base increases
resilience of the supply chain and the ability to operate under various
conditions. Also, the Group assigns designated project managers to have
regular meetings with suppliers, enabling quick response in identifying and
designing new distribution procedures related to climate change. The Group
will evaluate emergency transition plans regularly to enhance adaptive
capacity related to climate-related risks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT INDEX

Aspects
Em

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Summary
Bt

RE -dERERKRSE (&)

RE HEREBHRERS

Page Index/Notes
HERS| M

A. Environmental
AJRIE

A1 Emission

AVEERLH)

General Disclosure

— R

A1.2

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

EHRBERMREREHN MKRTHOEES BEER

BEERZYVNELESN:

() BX X

(o) BEFHBOTAGEAZZENEEEZERBAOINE
¥te

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BEm iR 28 R ARRE BE R B -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility.

BRERBESME (UMAE) L (WER)BE (NE
BRESENEES) -

For more details, please refer to
“EMISSIONS”

EREZHE 20 8y

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does
not have a significant emission. Therefore,
we are not disclosing on this figure.
TEK-
EEEMBANRERNEBRLBEES
REBER Y - Bt - BP0 450 58 M IR &
e

For more details, please refer to
“EMISSIONS”

EREZHIE 20 8y

EHERERERAT —T-—&=% bf



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE-HEK

wE (E)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
BE Bt HEZRS| M
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Not material.
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, ICT’s operation does not produce hazard
per facility). waste in significant quantities. Therefore,
we are not disclosing on this figure.
A1.3 FEEAEREEDES (AEAE) R (ER)ZE (I ~&FEK-
BERESELELS) - BBANEEE T BEEEAEREE
ZWe Bt B E R IEEE
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material.
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production  ICT’s operation does not produce non-
volume, per facility). hazard waste in significant quantities.
Therefore, we are not disclosing on this
figure
Al.4 PREABSERYES (AERTE) X (ER)mE (1 AEXe.
BERETENELS) BAMBANREC Y BRELERSBEE
W) o F I - FAPI 0 A 4 BR It TR BUR
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to  For more details, please refer to
achieve them. “‘EMISSIONS” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
A1.5 AT EBE R R AENEL B EMERY FHRESFE S2H R KR
o Bt g REREE]
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes ~ Not material.
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set  ICT's operation does not produce non-
and steps taken to achieve them. hazard and hazardous waste in significant
quantities. Therefore, we are not
disclosing on this figure
A1.6 HEEEERBEEEMN T A REMRAEIIEAR TEK

BEERNAZEDELB BRI SR -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Summary
Bt

RE -dERERKRSE (&)

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

A2 Use of Resources

A2E R F

General Disclosure

— R

A2.1

A21

A2.2

A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER (BIEER K REAMREM ) M B

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REAASNEERSEEER(NE- [skh) 8
HE(ATEFRERFAE) RBRE (NEHEZBEEN
EEE)e

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BEKENEE (NWEBEREEEMELE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

BRI Y RERAEE R R R EDN ELBEMR
FRERE) P8R

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

R SKEGE A R R A E R B - LA K P ET S A A K
Mz B R RAEREL B RATREE TR -

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”
BHEZFE F2HERER]

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”

EREZHE w20 EREA]

Not material.

ICT’s operation does not consume water
in significant quantities. Therefore, we are
not disclosing on this figure

TEKe
EBAREES T mAE K E
H P9 0 A 4% BR U TR BUR

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
FHAEZFE F2HEREAI RIR
Boitg RERERE]

Not material.

ICT’s operation does not consume water
in significant quantities. Therefore, we are
not disclosing on this figure

TEKe

BRBABEEE WEASREK Filt
P9 0 A 4R BR U TR BUR
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A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in  Not material.
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit  As our business nature does not involve
produced. the use of packaging materials in a
significant quantity. Therefore, we are not
disclosing on this figure
A2.5 BRATAREMBNEE (UETE) R (EA)E8 TEK-

EESBMLE-

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ABRIERRAEIR

General Disclosure

— R IR

A3.1

A3.1

A4 Climate Change

AT ARE AL

General Disclosure

— R

A4

A4 A
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Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

MIEBETAHRERRAERERERZENHEK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and actions taken to
manage them.

Ml EBEDEHRERRAARERNEAZERERR
ERAMTENTH-

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHER ARG HETAEEZENEARR
=B E R -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

BB R HETAEEYENERRIZEH
FH KEHTH-

Annual Report 2021

HRRMPNEBLEET S RERRER
KR B - TP 5 FR L TR BUR

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
FEEZFHE B2MIHTE RER
RAB R T2

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
EHEZHE #F20EHE RER
RABRN T E]

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE
CHANGE”

EREZHE B20 [RIxZL]

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE

CHANGE”

EREZHE B20 [RIxZL]



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE -dERERKRSE (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
Social

HE

B1 Employment and Labour Practices

BIERERZE TESR

General Disclosure

— R

B1.2

B1.2

Following information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits welfare.

ERAHNERRE BEREA TERE - R TE#

- Z b RIEAR A R E A58 RAEF A -

(& BE: R

(o) HETFHBOTAGEAZEMNEEEZERBAOINE
e

Total workforce by gender, position level, age group and
geographical region.

RS BALAR S  FEAR Rt RE o mEBAE

Turnover Rate by gender, position level, age group and
geographical region
RMF B RR FRAERIRIMEE S HIEEREL

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to
“‘EMPLOYMENT”

EREZHIE 20 B RE)

For more details, please refer to
“EMPLOYMENT”
EHE S5 B2 [ERE]

For more details, please refer to
“EMPLOYMENT”
EAE LT H2H [ERE]
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B2 Health and Safety

B2 RER &

General Disclosure

— AR IR EE

B2.1

B2.1

B2.2

B2.2

B2.3

B2.3

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FHARRLE2TFRRIREREH2BELEEN:

(@ B R

(o) BEFHBTAGEAZENEBEEELRAOINE
Ko

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
each of the past three years, including the reporting year.
RBAE=F(BEREFE)BFRIEBREMILTH
N 953

Lost day due to work injury
ETEHEEATIEAH

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

e AT ER A B BB SR R R B e B 0 DA AR BT I BR
BHEe

B3 Development and Training

B3 E K iZ|

General Disclosure

— R
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Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

BRREERIT TIEBE A M R B AR BUR - il
HAEE -

Annual Report 2021

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”

EREZHE B2 RRERE]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
EAEZFHE B2l REELS]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
EHELZFE F2HREEERT R

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”

FHEZFE F2HREERZ S

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”

EREZHE B2 #HRMEI
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B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and  For more details, please refer to
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle  “DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”
management).

B3.1 RUENREEEN (NMaREREE TREEE)ES BHEZFE F2HEEREI]
WEEEB DL -

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by  For more details, please refer to
gender and employee category. “DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”

B3.2 ZUERIREEREANES  BREETKZIOTHRE . BFHEELZHE B0 R RSV

B4 Labour Standards
B4% T A A

General Disclosure

— R

B4.1

B4.1

B4.2

B4.2

Relating to preventing child and forced labour:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

BRAMIEZE T ROAHISTH:

() BX X

(o) HEFHBOTAGEAZEMEEEZERBAINE
e

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.
it BB B EAREE T RIS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

R ERRERBREER A RIS R TR -

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5t R EE

General Disclosure

— MR IR ER

B5.1

B5.1

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
EHATBEMEENERIR R &R R EGR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR S HEREE -

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”

EREZHE H20 8T

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”
BHEZFE F20 5T £

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”
EHEZF15

A2 5T

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
EAEZFIE B2 [HEREE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
FAE LG B2 [HEREE]
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B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
number of suppliers where the practices are being ~ CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B5.2 HilBAEREERNEN mMENTEBEMNNHEE BHEEZHE H20HEREE]
FEE  AREEEMMNAITRER A

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental — For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are ~ CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 M BREZRHERTERGOIRERMERABRNED . BHEELZHE B2 HEREE]
ARSI RER A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally ~ For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
preferable products and services when selecting  CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 M REHRERREELZARRERLREHES . BHEEZHE H20HEREE]

ARBBERITRERT A

B6 Product Responsibility

BeEmMEE

General Disclosure

— R

B6.1

B6.1
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Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

FHMEHEMMBRENRRR LS ES SHNIL

BEEARER I A

@ HER:R

(o) BFHETABSIAZENHBEZRRMNE
e

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

CEXCEXERBETRAL 2 HMEEFIEdME K

Annual Report 2021

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY”

EREZHIE B2HEREME]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”

EHEZFE F2HEREE-—Em
BEHLE]
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B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints For more details, please refer to
received and how they are dealt with. “PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Customer
Opinions and Complaints”
B6.2 FEANERERBORFEB A RELY A EREZHE BB EREE-%F
B REKF]
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and For more details, please refer to
protecting intellectual property rights. “PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY -
Intellectual Property Rights”
B6.3 TR B A R E AR ERE R BB I ERELZFE BB EREE—MNH
ERE]
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall For more details, please refer to
procedures. “PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”
B6.4 HillE 2T BEREMBKIEF - FHREZFE B2B EREET-E®
EERZY]
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy For more details, please refer to
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. “PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Privacy
and Data Protection”
B6.5 HuEBEERRERFLBEE URBEATRER FHESZFE #2HERET-ALE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRES

General Disclosure

— MR

T e

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer.

BREADEFBE PR MEERERERN:

(@ HX:R

(o) BEFHBETABSAZENHEBEEEZRRONE
*he

BHERERARLT

KB RHRE]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-

CORRUPTION”

EREZHEB F2HTRES]
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B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt  For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
practices brought against the issuer or its employees ~ CORRUPTION”
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

B7.1 RBEANEHTASEREREWEELENESHK FHEZHE F2HIRE5]
TARMEVEIE R R-

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing ~ For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. CORRUPTION”

B7.2 R EE R B RE T U RBERITRERT A EHAEZFE F2HIRES]

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to  For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
directors and staff. CORRUPTION”

B7.3 HitmEERE TREORESTE - BHEZFE F2HIRES]

B8 Community Investment

B8itEIR&E

General Disclosure

— MR EE

B8.1

B8.1

B8.2

B8.2
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Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
FHENMEBE2ERTHRETACEMCHERS ZME
REXEBEHEE B ENRAER -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

EIEREE(NHE BEFE BIF L ER X

t-8%5)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EEIBRBEMBHAER (M RAER) -

Annual Report 2021

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”

EREZHE F2H [HRKRE]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”

EREZHIE B2HHRKRE]

For more details, please refer to

“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”
BFRAEZFE F2H HERE]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor
confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) except for some code provisions which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises 11 members, consisting of five Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.

ETREIWE
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun (Appointed on 24 June 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah
(Appointed on 16 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Hung Wai Man (Resigned on 25 May 2021)
Mr. Li Yi (Appointed on 23 September 2021)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving better performance of the Company. In designing the board
composition, board diversity can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, professional skills, industry experience and
knowledge and length of service. In considering these perspectives on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying
out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity
Policy into account in relation to the appointment of directors of the
Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve
better performance of the Company.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended

31 December 2021 is set out below:
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EEREH

EREHRBEREGHRHK
—&+ZA=+—H

EEHEREBE_F—
LTHEERTZEZEEAZE

JJ'—% k\L\#&D (IIEE_)

MBI T

Attendance/Number of

Meetings
Directors E HEBITGERH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMFEE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam ERETEE 4/4
Mr. Li Yue FIRESE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau BRIEM £ 4/4
Mr. Gu Sanjun (Appointed on 24 June 2021) BEo-Ei4E (RZEZ—FAZ+THREZMT) 2/2
Non-executive Director FHMITES
Mr. Xia Bin BEExAE 4/4
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah SRR P 4 2/2

(Appointed on 16 March 2021) (RZZEZ—F=A+ABZT)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Li Wei TELE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE 4/4
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Resigned on 25 May 2021) HAEREE (RZE-—FRA-+THHET) 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong THERESE 4/4
Mr. Li Yi (Appointed on 23 September 2021) FHEE(RZZEZ—FALAZT=HEZME) 1/1

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever

necessary.
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The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or
any of their associates have a material interest.

General Meetings

Under the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and non-
executives directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,
Mr. Li Yue, Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah and Mr. Wang Xiaolong, were unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2021 due to other important engagements. All other directors had attend
the 2021 annual general meeting to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with
the Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed
for any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of
service shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a
specific months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial
annual emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the remuneration
payable to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Company’s circular contains detailed information of the Directors
standing for re-election.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control
systems and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set
out below:

ENEZE R ZBEEE R Q F A & B
R @& -

BRERE WERHREARER BERERE
Ko 9 7B B2 4% | 2 LA B 4B BB SINBE A BUAD o

BRI EERERZEEER 2B RAHI A
T

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

R BITEERHY

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) BERBEE (LE) 2/2
Mr. Li Wei FREEE 2/2
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Resigned on 25 May 2021) HAERLE 1/1

(RZZE=——FRA=-F+HAFMT)

Mr. Wang Xiaolong TR A 2/2
Mr. Li Yi (Appointed on 23 September 2021) EH5HEE 0/0

(R—ZZE-_—FNA-T+=HEZMT)

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements, and ensuring that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
bEERRE (&)

HNEE g 2 B E T N AR R Ak &
R @& -

RBEE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HLFE"
FMZBESCRT—XREFH URIQESF
EafEBBZHMEFERTAE  (b)H M
Bz EE NER TELBRETH LA
BUHBRBUZHFMKFE AFHEEERE
EREARE -

FNEESRANEBIERNTEETEK - E
AMRBEEFMNEEEgR 2B RAHEI W
T

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HEBITEBRE

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) FREE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBEE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Resigned on 25 May 2021) HAEREE 0/0

(RZE-_—FRA-THAEMT)

Mr. Wang Xiaolong THERELE 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2021 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The attendance
of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set out below:

REZBEABUTESFHEIREOA

BYFATEFTHAEXE -ERKBEHLHFER
REZEEERZBERAINWMT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERITEBRE

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) TEMEE (FE) 11
Mr. Li Wei FEEE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi EEBLEE 1/1
Mr. Hung Wai Man (Resigned on 25 May 2021) HERREE 0/0

(RZZE=-—FRA-FTHAFMT)

Mr. Wang Xiaolong FRERESL A 11
Mr. Li Yi (Appointed on 23 September 2021) EH5H5E 0/0

(R—ZZE-—FNA-F+=HEZMT)

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the 'Independent
Auditor’s Report’.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$7,476,000 and HK$1,443,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of the
Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control
framework, covering all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The risk management and internal control framework
also provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.
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Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.
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To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website AR E B R E B KR F MR B B BEwww.
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the vstecs.comZEH AR AR EKBAE NS E 2
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information, EEe&H LR EHBER B HKER D EETA
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. ERREMER -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there had been no significant REBZ T - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE "
change in the Company’s constitutional documents. ARGz ERXHHESKRES-
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the development of information technology (“IT”)
product channel and provision of technical solution integration services.
The three major business segments are enterprise systems which provides
enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services; Consumer
electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud computing which
provides cloud computing solutions and services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 15 and
pages 17 to 21 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 17 to 21 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social
and Governance Report are set out on pages 28 to 66 of this annual report.
The Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages 67 to 82 of the
annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial
Summary on page 220 of this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2021 represented
approximately 7% (2020: approximately 9%) of the Group’s total turnover,
and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 16% (2020: approximately 18%) of the Group’s total turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2021
represented approximately 23% (2020: approximately 21%) of the Group’s
total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 60% (2020: approximately 63%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2021.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 108.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 of HK27 cents per ordinary share (2020: HK22 cents).

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy adopted by the Company is based on a number of
factors and conditions. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, any declaration
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company and the distribution of dividend should be made of out of profit.
When recommending an interim or a final dividend, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the financial results, liquidity position, general business
conditions and strategies, capital requirement for future development as well
as the distributable reserves of the Company (comprise of the Company’s
reserves excluding capital redemption reserve as set out in note 15 to the
financial statements) and the retained earnings of other members of the
Group and any other factors the Board may deem relevant from time to
time.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 110 to 111 and note 16 to the financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings and lease liabilities

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 20 and 21 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 220.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company acquired, through
some trust setup specifically for purpose of employment compensation, a
total of 4,308,000 ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021 from the open market at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$29,991,000. These shares would be used primarily for
providing employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs
of acquisition of shares are recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Mr. Li Yue
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau
Mr. Gu Sanjun
(Appointed on 24 June 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Bin
Mr. Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah
(Appointed on 16 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi

Mr. Hung Wai Man (Resigned on 25 May 2021)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong

Mr. Li Vi (Appointed on 23 September 2021)

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third), shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular.
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The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out on
pages 22 to 27.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares or issued share
Long/Short underlying shares capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity held Company
FEEBRY EARAR ST
BEEHA RE 14 HEROEHE BREZBYBIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 81,833,200 5.62%
FEMEE TR EREEA
Long Interest of a controlled 311,228,000 21.39%
HE RPEE R (Note 1)
(B1at1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.04%
HE ENI X (Note 2)
(Hat2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 1,993,600 0.14%
TEMTEE TR BEREBA
Mr. Gu Sanjun Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
=854 e BB A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

2. 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/
or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group:
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Number of
ordinary shares or Approximate
Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
BEEERY AR RE
EEuA u/RE 514 HEROD#E Epalid
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 81,833,200 5.62%

FEMEE e EnEA A

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.39%

HE REEE R (Note 1)

(Bfat1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.04%

e ENi 4 (Note 2)

(Bfat2)
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.04%

BIF 2+ HaE BEnEAA

Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.39%

e I AEER (Note 1)

(H17E1)
Long Family interest 81,833,200 5.62%

e ENiY 4 (Note 3)

(H523)

EHExEREmRen —- s« 91



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

KRB (&)

Number of
ordinary shares or

FERREEMBALRERS -
HEROREER Z2ERR

Approximate

Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
FEEBRY A IR 1
BEHR WA 514 HEROHE Epilsd
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.39%
"R EEEAA (Note 4)
(Htzta)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.33%
e (FE)BRAA e BEnEA A (Note 8)
(#1:ts)
RN E T B R SR AR 19 Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.33%
BRATA e AR ER (Note 6)
(Htzte)
FINTIREERER AT Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.33%
HE RIEEE R (Note 7)
(Hzt7)
AT ARBRFTES Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.33%
REEEEREESY HE Ry EEER (Note 7)
(Htat7)
A EAE S D ERTT Long Security interest in shares 252,211,998 17.33%
HE e An #E FR M 2 (Note 8)
(Htzt8)
RINEEERF Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.33%
HE R (Note 8)
(Hizt8)
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 145,576,300 10.00%
e BEnER A
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled corporation 166,114,038 11.42%
HE XA E R
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

Notes:

1.

311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse,
Ms. Liu Li.

204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of
Mr. Li Jialin.

81,833,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li
Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by %
It B B AR (D B R 2 A

18.30% of the shares of A I TH 15 dE i L FE SR (1 AR A 7 are held by
YT B IERER QA

100% of the shares of &I T EIERL AR A B are held by &I AR
BNEEEEEEERZEE.

89.26% of the shares of # Bl {H O R 7T are held by Bl R/MNEEIE 2.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far is known to the
Directors, no person had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 (the
“Old Scheme”) has been expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. During the year under review, no share options have been granted
under the New Scheme. Further details of the New Scheme are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, no share options have been lapsed or
cancelled under the Old Scheme. Details of the share options movement
under the Old Scheme are as follows:

B

R E 2B RESE

R-ZFE_FOATELERERRZARAEK
BitE (TEFEEEM-ARAN-F
—HAERNAZTZBRA BB RETE
(IF&rdl)) EEMRAERSEERAE
BELZERMEHABNZE - REEFE
BERBHAERLEMBRE - FHHE 2
E-HHBHNT B RRME5 -

REBFERETMNBRERBETSXNK
g B TEREESG ZFBOT:

As at Asat  Exercise price

Name or category of 1 January Exercised Lapsed 31 December per share
participant Date of offer 2021  during the year  during the year 2021 (HKS$) Exercise period

RZZZ-f RZZB=-f BRITEE
SHEREHE BTEH -A-H RERTT REREY +T=A=t-H (&x) 78
Employees 17/02/2011 720,000 (720,000) - - 2.227 17/02/2013-16/02/2021
Eg —E——F-ft++tH
Total 5t 720,000 (720,000) - -

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing
business.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which they may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of corporate
activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 33 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less
than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (E)

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS Holdings
Limited

(incorporated in the Cayrman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited, (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
106 to 219, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial staterments section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYREARE (&)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRESTEE

E@ﬁ%ﬁ%lﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ REUAREAMBBRRNBARREENTR CLETRRERMEE
BEalBRREEABEREE JEEEE’W&W?T\%Q%@%%IE%ET BEREHNER-

Valuation of inventories
Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.11.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information  Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted inventories included the following:

to HK$9,336,837,000 (approximately 31% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2021.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and
the future expenses necessary to make the sales. Future
demand and selling prices of technology products are
highly susceptible to factors such as industry standards,
technological changes and customer preferences, which are
constantly changing and could change very rapidly.

Determining provision for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the net realisable value of inventories as a key
audit matter because any write-down or provision may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and because the estimation of the net realisable values
involves the exercise of significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain.
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obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls over the inventory write-down and
provision assessment process, including the Group’s
monitoring controls over slow-moving inventories;

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual items
with relevant purchase records, including purchase invoices
and goods receipt notes;

evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity sold
subsequent to the reporting date and with reference to
inventory turnover days during the current and previous
financial years; and

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
estimation of write-down and provision for inventories
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
movements in the balance of provision for inventories
during the current year.



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIYBEMBE (&)

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.8.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables amounted to
HK$14,699,702,000 (approximately 49% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2021, after making a loss
allowance of HK$805,832,000.

The Group’s customers operate in a number of geographical
locations. According to the past experience of the Group,
the loss patterns for customers in different geographical
locations are significantly different. Therefore, when calculating
the loss allowance, the trade receivables are segmented by
geographical locations.

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses which is based on ageing of
the trade receivables and loss rates, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the customers, current economic conditions
and forward-looking information, all of which involve significant
management judgement.

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because the recognition of expected credit losses of
trade receivables involves significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain and could be subjective
thereby increasing the risk of error or management bias.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of trade receivables
included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls relating to credit control, debt
collection, segmentation of trade receivables, estimate of
expected credit losses and making related allowances;

° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the credit
loss allowance with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

° obtaining an understanding on the key assumptions of the
expected credit loss model adopted by the management,
the historical default data, and the assumptions involved in
management’s estimated loss rates;

° assessing the appropriateness of management’s estimates
for loss allowance by examining the information used by
management to derives such estimates, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the underlying documentation, including sales
invoices; and

° re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as
at 31 December 2021 based on the Group’s credit loss
allowance policies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYREARE (&)

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYREARE (&)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements continueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBE (F)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements continueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Pui Ngar.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReEMBNRLE

As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE-—F+=-HA=+—8

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LES R 5 680,397 682,142
Intangible assets BmEEE 6 358,069 359,386
Interests in associates R R R RS 8 988,860 953,407
Interest in a joint venture RELTEMER 9 11,333 29,250
Deferred expenses ERER X 10 52 346
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 19 182,665 174,527
2,221,376 2,199,058
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables B S R EAMERFKIE 10 16,230,727 14,660,181
Other financial assets HEMemEE 11 1,139,994 3,505,312
Inventories F&E 12 9,336,837 5,501,828
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBEFEY 13 3,247,498 3,559,192
29,955,056 27,226,513
Total assets BEE 32,176,432 29,425,571
EQUITY i d
Share capital s 14 145,517 145,445
Reserves 1 7,765,913 6,680,341
Total equity B 7,911,430 6,826,286
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
mamBERRE (&)

As at 31 December 2021 R =T =-—F+=-A=+—H
.

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FREBERB
Contract liabilities BHEE 17 855 481
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 147,002 165,940
Borrowings EE 21 1,543,000 =
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIEBE 19 44,571 40,245
1,735,428 206,666
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables EH5NREMENFRIE 17 16,538,627 11,921,688
Other financial liabilities HEtmemaE 18 321,173 2,778,062
Contract liabilities EHEE 17 707,975 711,462
Lease liabilities HeEaE 20 102,530 95,799
Borrowings EBE 21 4,735,318 6,750,812
Taxation payable FET RS TR 123,951 134,796
22,529,574 22,392,619
Total liabilities HEeE 24,265,002 22,599,285
Total equity and liabilities ke ERs 32,176,432 29,425,571
Net current assets RBEEFE 7,425,482 4,833,894
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 9,646,858 7,032,952

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March BBE&@R - ZT - —F - - +WAHLERR

2022, T3 -

Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William
ZEM FEM

Director Director

3 )

FUBE21I90B 2 MERAPBHRER 2 — 88

oo

The notes on pages 113 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FERaR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

—F+=A=t—ALFE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FBT FET
Revenue & 22 78,335,446 69,961,881
Cost of sales SHE R A (74,696,377) (66,834,568)
Gross profit FEH| 3,639,069 3,127,313
Other gains, net H b Ug ASHEE 23 65,674 36,025
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAXZ (1,420,559) (1,143,202)
Administrative expenses TEAX (622,972) (599,782)
Operating profit £ 5 T 24 1,661,212 1,420,354
Finance costs &R 25 (146,521) (193,908)
1,514,691 1,226,446
Share of associates’ profits DAGEEE R A F 8 58,903 23,685
Share of a joint venture’s loss DMEEEREEE 9 (18,458) (2,866)
Profit before taxation R 15 B ) 1,555,136 1,247,265
Taxation I8 26 (241,110) (179,685)
Profit for the year F R A 1,314,026 1,067,580
Attributable to: BUT AL REA
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREZEFEA 1,314,026 1,067,580
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREF (ZRREA)
- Basic — &R 28 92.74 cents Bl 75.54 cents /&l
— Diluted —#E 28 92.74 cents Bl 75.45 cents /&l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders BEHAEAEBERE
Final dividend proposed PR AR HR S 27(i) 394,000 320,100

FUBE21I90B 2 MERAPBHRER 2 — 88

oo

The notes on pages 113 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeEREtEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—&F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —TTHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Profit for the year F N A 1,314,026 1,067,580
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FREMEEEA  BREE:

Exchange differences MW ER 85,751 368,318
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEBABEE 1,399,777 1,435,898
Attributable to: LT AT RER,:

Equity shareholders of the Company RARIERFEEA 1,399,777 1,435,898
The notes on pages 113 to 219 form part of these financial statements. FUI3E2190B WA HHRERZ — 36
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—&+_-A=+—HILFE

Equity

attributable

tothe

Capital Company's

Share Share  redemption Capital General  Translation Other Deferred Retained equity
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings  shareholders
A17

ERER REEEA

e RHEE e BRGE -HhiE% ERffE Aot BERE REEA EitEsR
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T T T Tk T Fin Tt Tt T Fin
Note () Note fi) Note (i) Note fiy) Note (1) Note i) Note ()
Mt Wity Wty ity iy Wit Wit

Balance as at 1 January 2020 RZFZFF-f-BrEH 145,334 872,142 8,530 4519 211,988 (242,380) (84,239 (82,008) 4,820,586 5,654,472
Profit for the year FRah| - - - - - - - - 1,067,580 1,067,580
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - - 368,318 - - S 368,318
Total comprehensive income for the year #RZENALE - - - - - 368,318 - - 1,067,580 1435808
Dividend paid BfikE - - - - - - - - (242,413 (242,413)
Transfer of reserve GEmER - - - - 50,083 - - 5 (59,083) =
Share options exercised BEFERE 28 8,768 - (2.976) - - - - - 6,080
Deferred shares purchased BEEERERA - - - - - - - (37,920) - (37,920
Vesting of deferred shares ERERNER - - - - - - - 16,072 - 16,072
Shares repurchased BEERE
- Par value -Eff {17 - - - - - - - = (177
- Premium paid -BH%EE - - - - - - - - (5,726) (5,726)
- Transfer between reserves -EHER - - 1 - - - - - {17 -
Balance as at 31 December 2020
145,445 880,910 8,707 1,643 271,07 125,938 (84,239 (103,856) 5,580,767 6,826,286
Representing:
Share capital 145,445
Reserves 6,360,741
Proposed dividend 320,100
6,826,286
Balance as at 1 January 2021 RIFZ-5-A-BzEH 145,445 880,910 8,707 1,543 21,01 125,938 (84,239) (103,856) 5,580,767 6,826,286
Proft for the year EREF = s - - - - - - 1,314,026 1,314,026
Other comprehensive income E2EHA - - - - - 85,751 - - S 85,751
Total comprehensive income for the year  ER2EMAZE - - - - - 85,751 - - 1,314,026 1,399,777
Dividend paid EfRE 5 . = . . = = - By (1%
Transfer of reserve RERER - - - - 57,297 - - S (57,297) S
Share options exercised BEEERE 7 2215 - (744) - - - - - 1,608
Deferred shares purchased BREEERH - - - - - - - (22,758) - (22,758)
Vesting of deferred shares ELRNEE - - - - - - - 26,660 - 26,660
Balance as at 31 December 2021 RZB=—-F+-A=1-A
i 145,517 883,185 8,707 799 328,368 211,689 (84,239) (99,954) 6,517,358 7,911,430
Representing: f&:
Share capital RA 145,517
Reserves BE 7371913
Proposed dividend BiEks 394,000
7,911,430
The notes on pages 113 to 219 form part of these financial statements. F11B3E219E 2 M A RART B MK 2 — &
yaN
A
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(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

RERRSE®EK (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference
between the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and that of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April
2002; and (c) the premium arising from the new issue of shares, net of
share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled
shares of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to employees and directors
of the Company and the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 2.17(d).

According to the current Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10%
of their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the
statutory surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
For the purpose of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve,
the profit after taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting
standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before
profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant
regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or to
increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries
for the transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
(Note 2.2(a)).

Deferred reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of the Company’s
shares through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of employment
compensation. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.13(c).

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FElaRE®RR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE —Z —

—F+=A=t—ALFE

2021 2020
—BE-—F —E_THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEH RENE
Net cash generated from operations KREMS2IAE T 30(a) 950,008 2,784,304
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (Bff)/BREZ
EENEH (5,576) 59,352
Tax paid outside Hong Kong 2B BIREINRIE (254,800) (227,370)
Net cash generated from operating activities LE TSRS FE 689,632 2,616,286
Cash flows from investing activities WEEHZHRERE
Interest received B U F & 20,565 13,916
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE BEREHED
plant and equipment (N (47,801) (24,977)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEEVEENTR (4,701) (4,404)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME BE K
plant and equipment B IECE S 7,146 4,187
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired W —FEHE AT
BRI 2R & 32 - (11,172)
Purchase of financial assets BECREE (208,291) -
Disposals of financial assets HECREE 206,609 -
Dividends received from associates SR NGI N 16,391 14,943
Net cash used in investing activities KWEEHMA RS FH (10,082) (7,507)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEBEHCHEERE
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERSERT S 30(b) (90,584) (115,109)
Payment for the repurchase of shares R B B 19 15 3k - (5,9093)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ITEEREMB IR 1,603 6,080
Proceeds from new bank loans FIIRITE RFTIS A 30(b) 13,890,134 20,181,388
Repayment of borrowings EHEBE 30(b) (14,373,890) (21,371,075)
(Net Pledging of assets for)/proceeds from HiremBE (BEA
other financial liabilities BESFE)/FBHRIE  300b) (53,125) 120,791
Payment for deferred shares RAE AR An 3K (22,758) (37,920)
Vesting of deferred shares BEERDFE 26,660 16,072
Interest paid B B 30(b) (146,521) (193,908)
Dividend paid Ef’RE (320,138) (242,413)
Net cash used in from financing activities AR ZREFE (1,088,619) (1,641,997
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeMASEEY
cash equivalents (R ),/ anFEE (409,069) 966,782
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzZzBE&K
ReEEY 3,559,192 2,327,702
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INESTE R B) 2 B 97,375 264,708
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+-—RA=+—HBz2
RekBRLFED 13 3,247,498 3,559,192

The notes on pages 113 to 219 form part of these financial statements. F11B3E219E 2 M A RART B MK 2 — &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt %5 30 =& P &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—&F+_-_A=+—HILFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
of information technology (“IT”) product channel and provision of
technical solution integration services. The three major business
segments are enterprise systems which provides enterprise
system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services;
Consumer electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud
computing which provides cloud computing solutions and services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd
Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2022.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. The HKICPA has issued certain
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 REEAE

114 vSTECS Holdings Limited

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation continuea)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have effect on the financial statements and
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Consolidation

(@  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

2. FTEGHHEME »

2.1

2.2

mMBEE &)

Bt hAERREFERN &
BasthErETERE  BER
REgerl stz BE . A&
CEZHRABR SBIAXE
NEREAKYE REITEHE
& 7T J R K A R A 73

EREEREREAEU B RS LER
ZBERELMETBEHRRAY
5772#”&&&15#7%&&21
TR M sk 45m at

mERRE

@ MBAARIETERERS
WEARARNEEMES 2
ER-RNMNBARIMKER
THIERIE Z HRBES A
RERAVBERER EEZ
EHlERIEzZB AL IR
CEEHZEE TSR
SERRAMAzZ®E® X5
FReREUEASERR
AIEIR 5 mE S 2 EfKE
Raf HRERESUB
HERZHEH -FEARQ
AMRXSMEAZ REHRE
B-gmERERKAZEE
Bz A EERER

BETAIGED-

EHExEREmReE —T=-—==% 115



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

()

116 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2.14, 2.15 and 2.18 depending on
the nature of the liability.

Annual Report 2021

2. FTEGHHEME »

N
2.2 IREE

(@)

Ak B (&)

ERlPNCIDSE Sl 5
(%)
FERERER-—HMEAR
Bl IEAR N R B A
EhHzEZ MAEEKRA
MULEZERE A ANE
FX AT {7 B B 46 3K - DA B AS &2
BERL-UEZERAES
TEaeMABERZAN
EH-RE-—BEKAHM
FOASEAUEERATE
RIZ IR AERAENE R
Bl A BB EFEZ LG
BRI EEREE -

EEREEREE T BN
KPP ESZAN2Y BIR
RAREZRFAE ABAGE
moAEEEBZPHIEER
Eéé :vTxl:lTE %Z&:ﬂ'w:l/\
tEERAXRFIAFANRE
HEBEREERABIEEIE
ﬁ%%mﬁK“TF*hﬁ
AZEBDE KB IEZE]

R 7 hﬁAZﬁm&ﬁa#
BEAREZHEMEOER
AT EEEERIEME
2.14 2152 18R &G A B
BRAEZ2INAEBHBE-



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.9)
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture (see note
2.2(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

118 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 2.9).

2.3 Foreign currency translation

()

120 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continuea)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continuea)

©)

122 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment,
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Buildings held for own use carried at cost X A FIE I H1EEQ BIEF

Right-of-use assets arising from leases of properties, plant and
equipment #13 « R5 K& ﬁiﬁhﬁﬁFEE’JﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁF

Furniture and fixtures X & K& 2

Office equipment %A = :& 1

Computers & i

Motor vehicles J5E

Leasehold improvements 8 & #) 2 2 &

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment continuea)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &
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2. FTEGHHEME »

2.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.7). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software 10%

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

126 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

() Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) (see notes 2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, term deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables);
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continuec)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (continued)

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note
2.8); and

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
listed and unlisted securities, structural deposits, and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the investments in subsidiaries, associates and
a joint venture and other non-financial assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

128 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash generating unit”). The goodwill
acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of
impairment testing, is allocated to those cash generating
units or groups of cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets (continued)

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34
Interim financial reporting in respect of the first six months
of the financial period. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

()

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EESTHHERE »

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses (“ECLS”) (continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model

2.8
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always B 5 WA BB —

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(i

132 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the debtor
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(i

(i

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.21(jii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired,
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

in which case interest income is calculated

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(i

134 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

S significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

S it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

v)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under relevant accounting standards,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar
transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity.

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets

Investments in debt and equity securities and other financial
assets are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the assets or they expire. These
assets are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments and other financial assets held
by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the assets are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the assets is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 2.21(jii)).

2. FTEGHHEME »

8 E S Kk HMEWMRIE
(%)
V)

2.9

BHERZERARLT —T—

TRHEEHESHABEEEM
B YerAEaRtE
BEMABZERORANZ
BANEEHESE B3R
FHBEESE ARAKKE
EERLKEEBER 7
SEMBRRAKREN FHE-
MEEMEBEEAER T2
ERT Hpt —HEURX S
(Pl A KB 2R B EE)
ELBEaR TERFR=E
Wz -

ﬁﬁ"“&if* 0 5e o X &
HttemEE

EEEREEFFREAREME
BEERAEBEAZBEALE
EESEEINHEBD FPUER

BIERR - ZEEENHTERF
ENEEEGOXZRAY K &
BEAFEINABZER ([RAFE
IIABSERDAEZRENRS
RAEEREZEPHER - 56
$EIWHﬁmiﬂlﬂm“$
B H2HME33 - ZEREH
&ﬁﬁﬁ“@&MTﬁik%

B

\

) BREEINZKEREM
TREE
AEEMBHAENERERKRE
REMmEREEEIHEART
TIst28A 2 —:

S BN (WZEED
RWEEREERE R
MEMENEREERE
m#FH) B EMEH

SWATERAERA
_/f.ﬁ'%ﬁﬁ (R W5E
2.21(iii) ) °

—#4%% 139



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continuea)

() Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments (continued)

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the assets comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the assets are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the assets are derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the assets (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continuea)

(i

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.21(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8.

2.13 Share capital

()

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Repurchase of shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, which includes
directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction
from equity. Repurchased shares are presented as a
deduction from total equity.

Deferred reserve

Deferred reserve represented the cost of acquisition of
the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically
for purpose of employment compensation. The reserve
is credited with the amount of fair value of shares on
granting to awardees, and the relevant employment costs
net of any proceeds from the awarded shares are debited
to the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value
of the awarded shares and their costs of acquisition is
transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities, trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

A Financial guarantee is contract that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payment to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees issued are initially recognized within “trade and
other payables” at fair value, which is determined by reference
to fees charged in arm’s length transaction for similar services.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. The
Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs (see notes
2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantees.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2.8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.15Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial Q5 EBERHEMEME

liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings and other financial liabilities are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.16Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.16Income tax (continuea) 216 FTBH (&)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.16Income tax (continuea) 216 FTBH (&)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

()

144 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of
financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.17 Employee benefits continueq) ITERERA (&)

(d  Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).

()  Deferred shares
Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the
vesting condition (see note 2.13(c)).

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

()

148 vSTECS Holdings Limited

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.7).

Annual Report 2021

2. FTEGHHEME »

21978 € (&)

()

VEREAMA (8)
WEEEEAREL HEEE
YFIEBERRNEMNBEEN
RZBREBRR LFEAEE
FriBE & /9 F) = 8L 30 - oK 10 3%
%'J%T\““EDH%F&E‘E'HEEFH
HEEEEENE -RO$
HR%E ﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁ%ﬁ%%
Z’£E+E’*'J«D\Eﬂ§?ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
FBERE ﬂ\ﬁ#ﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁ%{
Yﬂ‘i_z—l”fﬁf}\ﬁm
a‘l‘/\%ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬂ'\]aﬂ'i*’l
IREEZETHAMAEZR
ko

REEERNLCHERNRE
REEENREKANGGE
HEEHEAENTHBEHE
&E’éﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂ%ﬂ@zZﬁM’EﬂjE’\]
FEEAENK URAEL
B 7] 40 36 B 3R R AN © i 3
R-EREEENKRATE
RFHEBRAEEENR
RHEEEESAZREEMAET
HmEERBIRA BHE
3B B 3R 30 HI R AT AT U &Y
HEBRSE-ERAEEERR
WA RET T E KR E
EBEYIE(RHE2.7) -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.19 Leases (continued)

()

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.19 Leases (continued) 21978 € (&)

(i)  Asalessor i EREHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease MAEBEEADBEA ER
HEHrNETCSHERSD
ARMEHEKLHE-E
HEBHBBEERERES
BRE KNI R R KD RE
'““%7%4"&}\57 HMESER

inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating

lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub- MEEE-TA HEHE
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating RIS E Tﬂ o fis) AN & @ "B
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from NHEBEA 2HDE2ER
the head lease. HEEEANTABREES S

AREHENKEHEE-

2.20 Segment reporting 2200 H | EH
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item KEDBRARMBHREANZER Z
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the EoEBEESBE AT HEHR

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEESTHESE w0

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income 221 Zm R EM U A

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 such that information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sales of goods
that had an original expected duration of one year or less is not
included.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

()

(i)

(iv)

152 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Revenue from service maintenance contracts are
recognised over the period of the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.23 Related parties

(@  Aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.23 Related parties (continueq)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

154 VSTECS Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and the assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of group entity to which relate, including Chinese
Renminbi (‘RMB”), the Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$"), the
Singapore Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Indonesian
Rupiah (“RP”).

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the
end of reporting period is mainly arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in the United States
Dollar (“‘US$"), a currency other than the Group’s entities’
functional currencies, as disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements.

A 5% strengthening/weakening of the US$ against the
respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities
(except for HK$ which is pegged to US$) at 31 December
2021 would have decreased/increased the post-tax profit
and retained earnings of the Group by HK$85,932,000
(2020: HK$71,300,000). This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

(b)

156 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in note 21. Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 December 2021, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings for the year would have been
HK$52,685,000 (2020: HK$56,420,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

©)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The exposures to these credit risks
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis by established
credit policies and procedures.

Term deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
mainly deposited in various financial institutions, which
management believes are of high quality. Management
does not expect any loss from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The Group’s historical
loss experience in collection of trade receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience indicates significantly
different loss patterns in different geographical locations,
the loss allowance based on past due status is further
distinguished by geographical locations.

3.

BHRREERATVE

(%)

31 M EREZE &)

©)

BHERERARLF

EERR
EERREXSHFIET
BREEMSASERBY
R B E R -

ARGV BRARZES
K E b W R IA - E IE K
HBREEREEFEBYVNERER
CHEASENESREE
mEzEeEERR A&
EEmszZEEERRIAD
BYZEEBRRREFHE

TEEE-

EMERRREeRASEE
MEEFEREZEEREMRRE
BEERFZEMHEE -B
BEERHATERNERRSY
FrAERAOMELTMEE-

AEBEWNEERREIEZRA
HEHRUKKE - NEEEH
AIBREREMDIHEE TE
ERBREZERP MALE
ETeHERFETENRE
EFf-ASEBTEREE
HRERBZBREREC
AREBEEZEBER-

AEBNEENEEAFTES
BHEEBENSHRITER
ZEBKRIENBRES &
HEEBERDRBEEREME
HE-ARAEENELER
EEERBTTRLEZE
BRAGFEREEZER ®E
P38 B AR R B S 1B B A —
HAT R E RS -

—z-—s45% 157



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea) 31 M EREZE &)
(©)  Credit risk (continued) © EERR#)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s TRREBEEBAEERE S
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: EWRIBAEREERR X
BHEEBEEMNER
2021
—EB-—F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
BHEEEEY IREAE EiEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
North Asia bl
Current (not past due) BNER (R H) * 9,902,638 -
1-90 days past due #HEI1E90H 0.76% 1,270,128 9,687
More than 90 days past due ~ #1Hi% 90 H 63.28% 1,107,948 701,082
12,280,714 710,769
Southeast Asia RED
Current (not past due) BNER (K@ H) 0.03% 2,373,906 595
1-90 days past due # 1 290H 0.05% 705,725 375
More than 90 days past due  #1Hi% 90 H 64.80% 145,189 94,093
3,224,820 95,063
Total 4BE 15,505,534 805,832

*

expected loss rate is immaterial * TEHBELLERE N
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

31 M EREZE &)

(©)  Credit risk (continued) EERR (#)
2020
—TFTE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
EHEELEEY% RmasE BiERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
North Asia pifCE]

Current (not past due) BIER (R H) * 9,023,160 =
1-90 days past due #HI1E90H 0.39% 1,149,109 4,480
More than 90 days past due %18 % 700 H 60.20% 955,240 575,070
11,127,509 579,550

Southeast Asia REE
Current (not past due) BOER (R H8) 0.05% 1,899,954 1,003
1-90 days past due fapihENe]= 0.20% 722,279 1,474
More than 90 days past due  #1H3% 790 H 69.45% 129,938 90,246
2,752,171 92,723
Total B 13,879,680 672,273

*

expected loss rate is immaterial

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#ZE —ZF—

—F A= +—AILEE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

©)

160 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Credit risk (continued)

31 M EREZE &)
© =ERR &)

Movements of the loss allowance for trade receivables are EoRWREBEEEREBEZE
as follows: E)/ N

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
At 1 January R—A—H 672,273 515,360
Amounts written off EMiE e (13,414) (14,439)
Provision recognised during the year T 4F 1A B 58 ) 4 s 132,251 143,452
Exchange difference E i =58 14,722 27,900
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 805,832 672,273

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and
cash and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows. The table below analyses the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEBEKREERAYEE

(continued) (#&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea) 31 M EREZE &)
(d)  Liquidity risk (continued) d mENVERER (&)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
REREORERE
Less than 1
oron Between 1 and Between 2 and
Total demand year 2 years 5 years After 5 years
am  -ERIRER —ECE —ERE BBELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T T
At 31 December 2021 R=Z=-%
+ZA=t-H
Borrowings &8 6,468,771 4,878,357 - 1,590,414 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 280,233 109,060 72,018 70,199 28,956
Trade and other payables & 5 R E i fER 7R 16,538,627 16,538,627 - - -
Other financidl liabiities ~ Eft & REE 321,173 321,173 = = =
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=-EE
+ZA=t-H
Borrowings fEE 6,966,259 6,966,259 - - -
Lease liabilfies HERE 207,773 102,786 70,586 78,531 45,870
Trade and other payables 25 & £ 1B 58 11,921,688 11,921,688 = S S
Other financial liabiities ~ Eft & B & & 2,778,062 2,778,062 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
assets. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings excluding
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2021:

3.

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.2

EXERER

AEEEREAZBNRERAN
SEBRERNIFEZE UAKRRE
R4 m R R B A0 F R A
HOARERREELARBIUR
EERKA -

RERBIHBREARE A&HE
FEHERNTRRERZREESEHR
AR REEEAR  BHTHRMD K
EERIE-

AEEREBFHE MEELX
ERER - Z L XZEHFER
NREEE BB FRIZEE
E(TrEREgEaBE) AR LA

FTRARARER = F =
TZAST-BZAKREHE:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

—E—F —ETF

+=BA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Total borrowings (Note 21) RIEE (Mi21) 6,278,318 6,750,812
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) I & RIS ZEW

(Kt:#13) (3,247,498) (3,559,192)

Net debt BB F5E 3,030,820 3,191,620

Total assets BEE 32,176,432 29,425,571

Net debt/total assets ratio ERFE I EEL R 0.09 0.11
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

()

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement’. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data is not
available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

()  Financial instruments measured at fair value (continuea)

3.

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.3 D EMEE (&)

()

ARFEFEZEHIE
(4)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-EBR E_EBR EZBR Ha]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHT FEL FEL FET
At 31 December 2021 R=-ZE=—%
t=ZA=+—H
Assets gE
Listed and unlisted securities £ % 3F % 223,411 - 606,724 830,135
Other financial assets HiopEE - 31,996 - 31,996
Derivative financial assets TEERMEE - 7,384 - 7,384
At 31 December 2020 R=-Z=-ZT&
T=A=t-H
Assets gE
Listed and unlisted securities =1 S 3F F &% 90,144 - 398,010 488,154
Other financial assets HipemEE - 847,255 - 847,255
Liabilities &&
Derivative financial liabilites ~ $TAE S B A& - 20,257 - 20,257

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy.

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of forward contracts in Level 2 is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used
is derived from the relevant government yield curve as at
the end of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i

(i

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements (continued)

The fair value of structural deposits is the estimated
amount that the Group would realise, taking into
account the interest rates and credit worthiness of the
counterparties.

The fair value of other financial assets is determined by
the Black-Scholes model. The volatility used is derived
from the historical quote price of the underlying securities.

[nformation about Level 3 fair value measurements

Approximate 65% (2020: 64%) of the Group’s unlisted
securities are related to healthcare sector. The rest are
related to various sectors including telecommunication
and e-commerce, etc. No dividend were received on
those investments during the year (2020: nil).

The fair value of these unlisted securities are determined
using adjusted net asset value. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the underlying
assets’ values. As at 31 December 2021, it is estimated
that with other variables held constant an increase/
(decrease) in 5% of underlying assets’ values would
have increased/(decreased) the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings by HK$30,336,000 (2020:
HK$19,901,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEBEKREERAYEE

(continued) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation (ontinueo) 3.3 X EME (&)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements iy BEAF=FEHRAIAFETE
(continued) ZER (&)
The movements during the year in the balance of these FRN FE-BHRAFEF=Z
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: EERE BN
2021 2020
—E-—F T EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted securities: FLEmES:
At 1 January n—HA—8 398,010 206,933
Additions B 149,752 124,905
Realisations =) (11,635) =
Net gain recognised in profit or loss FRREBERERZF W=
during the year 66,073 65,000
Exchange difference fEHZR 4,524 1,172
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 606,724 398,010
Net gains arising from the remeasurement of the Group’s BN EREEELITES
unlisted securities are presented in the “Other gains, net” EEZFRENREEEEER
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. [Ha e A F5E]IBE 250
(iv)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other V) MEAFEIEZEME
than fair value E;RBEZRTE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets R B A o B B AR B BR B R
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were EEesmEERBENK
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 HE B_ZT-_FTFRER_-F
December 2020 and 2021, ——F+ZA=Z+—A8M2
FETEERER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

To manage its working capital, the Group pledged certain of
its term deposits and structured deposits (collectively “Pledged
Assets”) to banks for issuance of letter of credits and bank
acceptance bills (collectively “Secured Obligations”). The
respective Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations have the
same maturity date with maturity period not more than 1 year,
and some of which meet the criteria for offsetting under the
prevailing accounting standards such that they are offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations as at 31
December 2021:

At 31 December 2021

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

3.4

HiFEcRHEEHEETME

&

RERREZEES AEEKHE
ETEMEARREBETER (5
BMICEREE)EMRTRT
NEZHERERBITELER (5
WIEERER]) HBECDER
EEMBERAEBEBERRNE
HE 2SMBMRAEBE1FE HP
MOFARTEAEL 2 EHFR
EOEREEMBEMRRERA TR
HE- TR _FT_—F+_A
St EBEWMDEREERBERA
R E B 47

R-ZZFE-_-—%+=ZA=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

wm HEHEH FE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

Pledged Assets EEREE 13,456,792 13,202,313 254,479
Secured Obligations BEMRES (13,523,486) (13,202,313) (321,173)

At 31 December 2020

RZEZZEF+_A=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

HE BHeE PEiE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET

Pledged Assets EEREE 12,868,028 10,210,757 2,657,271
Secured Obligations BHEMRES (12,988,819) (10,210,757) (2,778,062)

The Group included the net amount of Pledged Assets in
“other financial assets” and net amount of Secured Obligations
in “other financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

168 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-down
of inventories is recorded to the extent where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-down requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-down of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss of trade
receivables.

The measurement of loss allowance of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the expected credit
loss in the period in which such estimates are changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of the relevant cash
generating units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates (see
note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective
and judgements are based on the Group’s experience and
knowledge of operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in business and
economic conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ - -—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Property, Plant and Equipment 5. ME-BMERRE

Buildings
Leasehold held for own
properties and use carried Furniture and Office Motor Assets under Right of
improvements at cost fixtures equipment Computers vehicles construction use Asset Total
G REATIEN
REB KFEREE GAREE BRERE H | RE TREE ERkEE ]
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Thn TR Thn ik Fhn Fitn a7 Titn Thn
Asat 1 January 2020
Cost 50,067 21113 34059 17481 44009 11,724 2,768 286,059 873,880
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (39.481) (65,623 8772) (12171) (20,491) (7.431) - (80,040) (224,009
Net book amount FEFE 10586 372,09 25,287 5310 2518 4293 2,768 206,019 649,871
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-F-EE4CA=1-8
&34
Opening net book amount FNEEEE 10586 372,090 25,087 5310 2518 4293 2,768 206019 649,874
Adtions RE 354 129 9458 666 6,339 1849 6317 124949 150,061
Transfer B - - 4733 - 43 - 5,17 - -
Disposals and derecognition HERK|LRR o (854) (1,017) (20) (1,962) (349 - (12,567) (16,769)
Depreciation it 3 (5,104) (14,00 7.775) (1,888 8,121) (1,691) - (83,881) (122,560)
Exchange difference 355 2 9228 316 74 281 268 259 11,087 21,539
Closing net book amount EREREE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4142 20493 4370 4178 245,607 682,142
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-FE+A=+-8
Cost A 50,706 437,657 44209 16,368 44363 13,386 4178 347577 958,439
Accumuated depreciation ZithE (44,844) (71,164) (13207) (12,226) 23870) 9,06) - (101,970) (276,297)
Net book amount FEE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4142 20493 4370 4178 245,607 682,142
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z--£1ZA=1-8
LER
Opening net hook amount FEEEE 5,862 366,493 31,002 4,142 20,493 4370 4173 245,607 682,142
Addtions RE 3410 19,489 9872 3333 10,127 1,170 400 84,086 131,887
Transfer g3 - - 476 - 22 - (708) - -
Disposals and derecognition HERRLER (3341) - (104 (29) (348) (261) (3,069) (4,678) (11,82
Depreciaion & 737 (14519) 0915 2067) (8563) 2015) 5 90,608) (128,424)
Exchange difference EXZ® 309 4,961 (613) 2% (468) 165 (] 2318 6,616
Closing net book amount FREDFE 5,503 376,424 30,716 5410 21473 3429 " 236,725 680,397
As at 31 December 2021 RZB=-%+ZA=1-H
Cost A 11,442 463,154 53,099 18,776 50,576 14,339 " 396,977 1,009,080
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (59%9) (86,730) (22,383) (13,366) (29,103) (10,910) e (160,252) (328,68)
Net book amount B8 5,503 376,424 30,716 5410 473 3,429 mn 236,125 680,397
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

. 2 _
5. Property, Plant and Equipment continuec 5. WX -MERRE =
The analysis of the net book value of leased assets by class of REBEEEMNDENHEEENR
underlying asset is as follows. All of the leased assets are carried at HFEI>MOT -FBEHEEESKT
depreciated cost. EXARTIER -
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—fF TE-THE
+=ZA=+—-8B +ZHA=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
By 5T FET FHET
Buildings held for own use FIEE AESF () 376,424 366,493
Leasehold properties for own use FIEERARNHEEDE (ii) 236,295 245,013
Plant, machinery and equipment YIEE e R (i) 430 594
613,149 612,100
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit HREsPREIANEEEENERE
or loss is as follows: BataT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of buildings held for own use #{EERMEFHITEE A 14,519 14,100
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FRAEESENTEER:
Leasehold properties for own use BIEERMBEEDE 90,492 83,756
Plant, machinery and equipment L ERE T Y & 116 125
105,127 97,981
Interest on lease liabilities (note 25) HEBBF S (Hites5) 3,030 3,147
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Property, Plant and Equipment continueq

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$84,086,000 (2020: HK$124,949,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
renewal or new tenancy agreements.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 20.
Cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2021 are
related to lease rentals paid which are within financing cash flows as
set out in note 30(b).

(il

)

(iv)

Buildings held for own use

The Group leases several buildings for a period of 50 years.
None of the leases include variable lease payments.

Leasehold properties for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as
its premises and warehouses through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years. Some leases include an option to renew when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Other leases

The Group leases office equipment under leases expiring from
one to twelve years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Sub-leases as a lessor

The Group sub-leased certain leasehold properties for 2-4
years during the year ended 31 December 2021 and classified
these sub-leases as finance leases as these sub-leases are
for the whole of the remaining term of the head-leases. The
undiscounted annual lease payments ranges from HK$530,000
to HK$34,953,000 (2020: HK$11,981,000 to HK$27,654,000)
each year during the sub-lease period. The total discounted
lease receivables amounted to HK$68,832,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$56,921,000).

E R G E S

BHE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIHF
Jﬁv@ﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁi hng4,086,000% T
— T T4 :124,049,0005% T ) 2
CHEITHBREERA T HE W&
Hmﬁ$mﬂgﬁmﬁ%°

HEBGBNIBHBE »MFEBEI DK
Ho0-HE-_ZE-_—F+A=+—
BHtFE HENBESREEHET AR
EReRENCHNEEREEH HE
A M 5E30(b) o

(i) FFERANETF

AREBEETRT AEHA
50%F - ff M 1 8 €245 7 % 10 & 14

un%#@%%m%%%

AEBECEBHEHBRESER
HyEmEyE “ﬁm%ﬂ
ﬁ RO LR -—FE=F-
DHEBREEFHEME K
ﬁ%géﬁfm“§%°ﬁﬁﬁ
ERREEHEENR

(i) EiE &
A0 B RS TR TR B A

R E R 0 T A R éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
EMEER-GIEHERRTE
HER R

(iv) 2% (FEAEHHEA)
REBERBEE_ZT-_—F+=A
=+t HAEtFERSPBEETH
EME_ZNF UHEZESHA
PHEAEMERE HWIARZE
SN ATHERNGFTHEME
HE - AMBFEHENAR S
HAHMBEEF N F530,0008TE
34,953,000 0 (Z T Z T F:
11,981,000/%8 ;L £27,654,000/%
L) RZE-_—F+=_fA=+—
H-EMBARKBERELES
68,832,000 L (Z T =T F :
56,921,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

6.

172 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Intangible assets

BT —F+-_A=+—HItFE

6. BLEE

Goodwill Software Total
EES ;i et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
As at 1 January 2020 A ——
—A—H
Cost and net book amount B K BR 5 324,099 - 324,099
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZT-ZF
+=-—A=+—8H
HFE
Opening net book amount FYIRMEFRE 324,099 = 324,099
Addition B - 4,404 4,404
Addition through acquisition of 7 38 W B — R BT 2B
a subsidiary (note 32) NRINE
(Kt7#32) 8,340 23,464 31,804
Amortisation 55 - (1,790) (1,790)
Exchange difference MEHER (96) 965 869
Closing net book amount FREEHFRE 332,343 27,043 359,386
As at 31 December 2020 MR_T_TF
+=-—A=+—H
Net book amount BRMEF R 332,343 27,043 359,386
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z—_—F
t=ZHA=t+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHRENFRE 332,343 27,043 359,386
Addition wE - 4,701 4,701
Amortisation e - (3,740) (3,740)
Exchange difference ELER (3,139) 861 (2,278)
Closing net book amount FRIREFEE 329,204 28,865 358,069
As at 31 December 2021 R=ZZ2=—F
+=A=+—H
Net book amount BREFAE 329,204 28,865 358,069
The amortisation charge of software for the year is included in FREBGHEBEBAT ARGEERER
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. ZITBAZA-
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Intangible assets (ontinueq

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs") to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of
assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Similar key
assumptions are used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs which include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections is 0% (2020: 0%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate as at 31 December 2021 of 10.1% (2020:
8.5%) was applied in determining the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs. The discount rate used reflect the risk-free rate and
the premium for specific risks relating to the business units to
which the CGUs relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

BEEE»

ErERmBzR8ARSELEEN A
WoeRRERBEFEZEE - AR
BERTETZREERERADRER
RBREEMRACBRERRIETET-
EHACELEENAECREERA
ZEUIZRRERE:

(a) BERERBEERLE:
FEBFTEIEA -

BEBENMA

by BEMRRESMEEN 2 EA K
HFEEBREOR (ZTE T F:
0% ) °

(c) RZTEZ—F+=ZA=+—RH2
BRRATBR R R A101% (ZE =
TF:85%) ERAREER:
ELXEBEMzA WG £ %5 BT ARL
RERBREBEERRAERE
EEBUHBEBEM ZFER
fx i B o

BERTERKXERZEEBEREERE
HEMBMRERKRBE 24 DIRE
MINBRIF -BERR(BELEE) R
HEMBERZERGL -

AREEREEE FEAZ LRATE
BREABTEREZBD FATH
BRAKEBAEEABEET 2
-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. RBARIZIRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are R-_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HzZXE
as follows: WMEBAR ZHFBOT :

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/  Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment  place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
AR EsRER DL
A% B2 TEXBREE Y BETRA/EMERHE B &
(Ki3t)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the British 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% =
Islands Virgin Islands
VST Group Limited EBRAES NEBRaHBNFRALR  ARESRAEBIETZEAR 100% -
Shenzhen VST Grand Electronic Co.,  PRC Distribution of IT products in the RMB100,000,000 100% =
Ltd. PRC
RYNBEEEEFERAF i R E D HE AR RER AR 100,000,000 100% -
VSTECS (HK) Limited Hong Kong Distribution of IT products in Hong 2 ordinary shares = 100%
Kong
BLEER (FE)ERRA 5E REBDHEANRER MREBR - 100%

62,000,000 non-voting deferred

shares
62,000,000 & 1% E R TR
Chong Qing VST Grand Technology ~ PRC Distribution of IT products in the US$20,000,000 S 100%
Development Co., Ltd PRC
ERBARANRERERLA el RPESHEAREER 20,000,000 7T - 100%
ERECEANEERAF PRC Project investment in the PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%
ERELEANRERAR i RPEREFEERE AR #30,000,0007 - 100%
ECS Technology (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, provider of 11,500,000 ordinary shares - 100%
IT products and services for IT
infrastructure in Hong Kong
EARMB (PE)BERAF B WNEBREREERUREAM  11,500,0008 & @K - 100%
REmREMR R ERRIER
BHERE
ECS Technology (HK) Co., Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 10 ordinary shares - 100%
services for T infrastructure in
Hong Kong
BREAMBBERAF BE REBRBEAMBRERRENR 10REBKR - 100%
RHR AR R R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —ZF—

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are

as follows: (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()
—F A= +—AILEE

7. REBRARZIRE »

RZZEZ—F+

“A=t—HZFE

MEBARZFHBEWT : (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEERBAL
A1 BRIt B TEEBREE Y BRIRE/SAMERFE B %
(K13t)
ECS Computers (HK) Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 1 ordinary share = 100%
services for T infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EAEK (FE)ERRA 5E REBRBEANMBERRER 1REBR - 100%
RHR AR R R
VSTECS (Chongging) Technology Co, PRC Electronic settlement business US$130,000,000 - 100%
Ltd centre and provider of IT
products and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
BAER (EE)MEERAH HE TEEFEEHEETOREMR  130,000,000% 7T - 100%
BEm R AR R R AR R R
BHES
ECS Technology Company Limited PRC Provision of IT products and HK$10,000,000 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BMTEABENEERAF HE WP EREEAMBEERREM  10,000,000% T - 100%
RH AR R
VSTECS (Shanghai) Technology Co.,  PRC Provision of IT products and RMB174,380,000 - 100%
Ltd services for T infrastructure in
the PRC
TRREEAMBEERAR i RPEREEANEERREN  AKRHK174,380,0007C - 100%
RHERER R
ECS China Technology (Shanghai) Co., PRC Provision of IT products and RMB124,151,500 = 100%
Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
EARE (L) ERAF HE RPEREEANRERREN  ARHK124,151,5007C - 100%
R AR R R
ECS Technology (Guangzhou) PRC Provision of IT products and RMB82,786,600 - 100%
Company Limited services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BMEARRERRA h RPEREEANRERRER ARK62786,6007T - 100%

R ERR IR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries contineo 7. RENBARIZRE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HZFxZ
as follows: (continued) MBARZHBHOT: (£)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEERBAL
A1 BRIt B TEEBREE Y BRTRE/EMERFE B %
(K13t)
ECS Chongging Chuangying PRC Provision of IT products and RMB300,000,000 = 100%
Technology Co., Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BEENEIRNMEERDA h RPERAEAMZERRER  ARM300,000,0007T - 100%
RHR AR R R
VES Supply Chains (Chong Qing) PRC Provision of supply chains RMB30,000,000 - 100%
Management Co., Ltd management and warehouse
transport services in PRC
EEERARBHEREEERLA h RPBRMEHEREE AHE  AR30,0000007T - 100%
BWERS
R ERBEREFRAR PRC Project holding in the PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100%
AYTERBEREERAA H RPEREEERE AR #3,000,0007T - 100%
VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ Singapore Investment holding and 446,036,800 ordinary shares 100% -

distribution of IT products,
provision of IT services and
enterprise systems in Singapore

VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ #7 A13% RETIE R EREER HHE 446,036,800k & @k 100% -
ABHRER  REEARER
BREEZRS

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd Singapore Provision of IT products and 13,600,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd R RETIEREEARRERRE 13,600,000 §REE1HMETZ - 100%
AR AR RS R

Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd Singapore Retail of IT products, IT equipment 150,000 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
and accessories in Singapore

Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd FiIIE REMEREEAMEER & 150,000 BREE1FTINEK T2 L - 100%
ARBRREREHTE Ak

Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products and 5,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

Exeed Pte Ltd HINR RETME D HEABRERRKE 5000000 BREEIF MK TL - 100%
FEAMBRARRERS ERR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —ZF—

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are

as follows: (continued)

7. RHBAE]

— &+

B RS SR R MR ()
—F A= +—AILEE

ZRE =

“A=t—HZFE

MEARZFBEMT: (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
HMRkL/ FEERBAL
A1 BRIt B TEEBREE Y BRTRE/EMERFE EE ik
(K13t)
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products in 2,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
Singapore each and 24,785 ordinary shares
of US$1.8156 each
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd BN RETIE D & AR ER 2,000,000 BREE1H MK T2 - 100%
LB 24,7850 SRR E1.8156
EnzERK
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd Singapore Investment holding in Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd HINR RETMER R EREZR R BREE R INE T LR - 100%
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distribution of IT products in 100,000 ordinary shares of US$1 - 100%
Indonesia each and 5,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rp13,000 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya e REEDHEMBRER 100,000 BREEIE T2 TBR 100%
5,000,000 & f 1 {E113,000E0
feE 2 Lk
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand Provision of IT products and 21,500,000 shares of 10 Baht each 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd ZE REERBEAMBERREM 21,500,000 FREBE10R% . R 100%
R AR R R i)
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd Myanmar Provision of marketing research 300,000 shares of US$1 each 100%
and IT services in Myanmar
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd e REBRETSHEBRAREN 300,000 GREEIET KRR 100%
RHBR
VSTECS (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. Cambodia Import and export of IT products ~ KHR20,000,000 100%
in Cambodia
VSTECS (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. R RRBFASZEARREREL 20,000,000k HERE 100%
H
IRERZEHBNEERAR China Provision of cloud services inthe  RMB3,000,000 60%
PRC
TREAZEYERFEARAT HE R EREERSE AR #3,000,0007T 60%
Note: K&t -

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established
in the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BRIPBERZZ B RRRINEBEREN

EMBAREREREMERT-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. Interests in Associates 8. MEtERNRNELR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Unlisted ¥
Share of net assets DIFEE 648,077 637,390
Loan to an associate BB ENANER 3,508 3,493
651,585 640,883
Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIMbE EH
Share of net assets DIEFEE 337,275 312,524
988,860 953,407
Market value of listed shares EHERATE 356,954 298,595
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, BRIBERaNERLNETTE T A
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. EEA 2ERBEHTER-—FAK
IE] °
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Interests in Associates (ontinueq)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. REBEDQNTNER »

FH+-A=+—HZzZHBZ

R-ZZT = —

Country of
incorporation/
Name establishment Principal activities Particulars of issued shares  Equity interest held by the Group
£ HMRY/ RIBR FEEH BRITROFE REEME 2 RE
2021 2020
—E--F e Sl 33
VSTECS Phils. Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary shares of 49.99% 49.99%
Peso 100 each
VSTECS Phils. Inc. FEE DEHBARRER 3,007,055 F R EE 49.99% 49.99%
100 R 2 &k
VSTECS Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 357,001,400 ordinary shares 43.12% 42.76%
technology and services of RM0.5 each
for IT infrastructure
in Malaysia
VSTECS Berhad ERAR AERETEMBEER 357,001,400 BREE 43.12% 42.76%
BB AR KRB 052 H 2 EBR
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. HE BB RS 196,000 & iR E & 49% 49%
10058 2 R 15
APAL Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Aviation leasing 1,056,000,000 ordinary shares 28.41% 28.41%
of US$0.1 each
APALIZRR B IR 2 A) HERS REEE 1,056,000,0008% & R & 28.41% 28.41%
0.1F T2 BEkK
VSTAM Technology PRC Investment management RMB500,000,000 45% 45%
Development Limited services in the PRC
BREAMRERBERAR F RPBEREREEERE  ARHKS500,000,0007C 45% 45%

BHERERARLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

8. Interests in Associates continue 8.

None of the associates were considered individually material to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the

T B

*E%MHHP En
EEEAKN-

NE R @

ERER:IN]

ERBEREAE
2R A WIS mAR P AT E

consolidated financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate ENRZBRER % EREXHE &
financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as B 5153 ENB CBETE B ER
follows: PUNNE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit from continuing operations BHEBEERT 58,903 23,685
Other comprehensive income HEfE2mEmkA (7,060) 4,261
Total comprehensive income M ALLETE 51,843 27,946
9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELENRER
2021 2020
g —EF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Share of net assets DIEFEE 11,333 29,250
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: R-ZZE-_—F+_A=+—HZA%
EEFBEOAT:
Country of Particulars of registered
Name establishment Principal activities and paid-in capital Equity interest held by the Group
#18 RAER TEER AR EHERFEE AEEMEZRE
2021 2020
—E--F e Sl 33
Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of
smartphones and computer
peripheral product
EMHEBESHE s HE EENHESH AR #155,000,0007T 38.03% 38.03%

21N
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10.

Interest in a Joint Venture continueq) 9.

Bozhou Botong Information Technology Co., Ltd is the only joint
venture in which the Group participates and it is not considered
material to the Group. Financial information (the Group’s share) of this

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

REELENER o

EMTEBEEMRERRAR/EE
B2EEXKE s E-——MEERLE I
BELSHAEEBEAN - NREEDHZ

joint venture is as follows: EELEZHBERNAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss from continuing operations FELEEE (18,458) (2,866)
Other comprehensive income Ef2EIA 540 1,720
Total comprehensive income FHEBALEE (17,918) (1,146)
H =,
Trade and Other Receivables 10. ES R HMEWRKIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Trade receivables, net H 5 W RIBF 5 14,699,702 13,207,407
Other receivables and prepayments b FE YR IE R TR 3R IE 1,528,965 1,449,703
Deferred expenses EERF 2,112 3,417
16,230,779 14,660,527
Less: Non-current deferred expenses B IEA BRIRAE A 2 (52) (346)
16,230,727 14,660,181
muexpramas —o-—55% 181



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables continue)

The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is

10. EZ R EMEWRRIE =

AEERTE=ZITRFPZEEHNF7
E1I50R MEEEFPZ2EEHART
WERAEBEB 2R FERNRLEILE
R-BZRUFAFELZEZAHE D

as follows: ZEHREOMTWOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
0 - 30 days 0%230H 7,517,028 7,246,323
31 - 60 days 31%260H 3,287,422 2,674,959
61 — 90 days 61%290H 1,356,124 872,392
Over 90 days H#E0H 2,539,128 2,413,733
14,699,702 13,207,407

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were

EOLEMBURFBBREENATIE

denominated in the following currencies: KA -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 8,493 26,380
RMB AR 11,772,853 11,068,572
us$ V) 972,102 812,907
S$ g T 754,495 458,132
THB B0 1,656,392 1,607,515
RP e & 1,066,392 686,675
16,230,727 14,660,181
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10.

11,

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

Trade and Other Receivables contined)

Except for the lease receivables of HK$34,998,000 (2020:
HK$27,166,000) included in other receivables and prepayments which

is expected to be recovered more than one year, the trade and other

receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.

Other financial assets

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

EZEB-—F+-A=+—RHIIFE

10. EZ R EMEWRRIE =

Rt AEMmERRERESKRER
WBEHEBE—FhkEZ2EKAEXR
JH34,998,0008 L (ZE =T F:
27,166,000 7t ) 4 - B 5 & H fih & IR
HREWEHTERN —F AWK EK#ER

BRI -

1. HibEmE

E

2021 2020
—2--F ZTTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHBT FET
Current N1
Financial assets measured at FVPL HRFEIAEw R
FTEZEHMEE
— Unlisted investments —JELEWRE 677,958 398,010
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 152,177 90,144
— Other financial assets —HitvemEE 31,996 -
— Structured deposits —EEETR (ii) - 847,255
— Derivative financial assets —TESRMEE 7,384 =
869,515 1,335,409
Financial assets measured at HEH AT EZ
amortised cost THEE
— Term deposits —EHBFER (ii) 254,479 2,169,903
— Unlisted debt securities —ELEMEBHES () 16,000 =
270,479 2,169,903
1,139,994 3,505,312

BHERERARLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11. Other financial assets contied N HhEMEE =
Notes: Kiat -
() The debt securities bear interest at 8% per annum and will mature in 0] BEEHFEFTR RSB TR =
2028. T =FHH-
(i) Structural deposits of HK$nil (2020: HK$847,255,000) and terms iy HEUEFERTET(ZTE_FTF:
deposits of HK$254,479,000 (2020: HK$1,810,016,000) are 847,255,000 L) R E B F KX
pledged for issuance of bank acceptance bills (note 3.4). 254,479,000 L (Z T =T F:

1,810,016,000/8 7T ) T3 £ R 8 1T IR 1T
A RE (HI5E3.4) 2 A -

The carrying amounts of other financial assets were denominated in the HthemEE L REBENUNUTEEE:
following currencies:

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 127,071 175,144
RMB AR 463,588 3,054,574
us$ ET 549,335 275,594
1,139,994 3,505,312
H A
12. Inventories 12. 78
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BEHEEFEFE 8,074,110 4,961,888
Inventories-in-transit BERTE 1,262,727 539,940
9,336,837 5,501,828
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is BRAEAIZGESE ZOMHERH
shown in note 24. ¥24 -
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13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes to the

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ()
E_T-_—F+-A=t+—HIFE

B RERREEEY

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRS 3,088,051 3,082,563
Short-term bank deposits MEIRITER 159,447 476,629
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EYD 3,247,498 3,659,192

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated
in the following currencies:

ReRREEEYREEN T EH
sHE -

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
HK$ BT 107,066 167,263
RMB (Note) AR (B57) 2,253,657 2,392,719
Us$ ETT 481,185 550,498
S$ T 155,205 196,031
THB B3 7S 40,659 56,026
RP Me&E 209,726 196,655
3,247,498 3,559,192

Note: KiaE -

The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to prevailing rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.

REBAAREITHEZRITERREFRIF
MRFPBEZRIT- REZEUARBHEZ
BRRINEREESERDRAETHERK
F3 BT AR 2 BRAT HME B AR B R AR 1

muexnpERas —=- 543 185



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. Share Capital

14, B

2021 2020
—E- ZTETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Authorised: VERE
2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000/% (= ZE == :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,0008% ) & I EE
0. 1B T EBR 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EBTRMREETERK:
2021 2020
—Ez-F —Z-ZF
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
SRAEEIBTZ SREHEETL
ERTEERYA HE SETYERHA EfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL
At1 January ®—A—H 1,454,451,998 145,445 1,453,341,998 145,334
Share options exercised (Note () BT BIRE (Hfita) 720,000 72 2,880,000 288
Repurchase of own shares (Note (b))  BEEIARH IR (A2 b)) - - (1,770,000) (177)
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 1,455,171,998 145,517 1,454,451,998 145,445
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. Share Capltal (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2021, options were exercised
to subscribe for 720,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of HK$1,603,000 of which HK$72,000 was credited
to share capital and HK$2,275,000 (including HK$744,000
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.17(d)) were
credited to the share premium account.

14, A (2)

g

(@

RIBRE R S 81 B1T D

RBE_T=_—F+_A=+—H1
FE - BREEITELZA(E1,603,000
78 TR AR F]720,0000% EiEA - H
72,000 7T & AR A - 12,275,000
BT AROEER EP8E
744,0007% 7T B I BRI sE2.17(d)FTE 2
CHBERERFEEEBRERMEE
E\-Eo

Number of Credited to Debited to

Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued Consideration share capital premium reserve
REBREAIBTRO AN BIcBERYA RE FFARK FARBEE NBEAfE
HKS HKS HK$ HK$

BT BT BT AT

January 2021 “T--%-f 720,000 1,603,000 72,000 2,275,000 744,000

During the year ended 31 December 2020, options were exercised
to subscribe for 2,880,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a
consideration of HK$6,080,000 of which HK$288,000 was credited
to share capital and HK$8,768,000 (including HK$2,976,000
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.17(d)) were
credited to the share p remium account.

REBEZZTE_TF+=A=+—
ALEFE BREETENRRE
6,080,000 7T 378 & 78 2 7]2,880,000/%
@A H Fr288,000/ Tt aT AR A
8,768,000/ 7T Al 5t A B 19 % (B Bk
B 8 152,976,000/ T B KB W 5
2ATOFTEH 2 Gt AR EAREESE
BERMEER-

Number of Credited to Debited to

Month of Shares issued ordinary shares Credited to Share Capital
under share option scheme issued Consideration share capital premium reserve
REBREAHBTRO AN BIcBERYA RE HINTS FARBEE NREARE
HKS HKS HK$ HK$

BT BT AT AT

June 2020 240,000 487,000 24,000 711,000 248,000
November 2020 480,000 1,069,000 48,000 1,517,000 496,000
December 2020 2,160,000 4,524,000 216,000 6,540,000 2,232,000
Total 2,880,000 6,080,000 288,000 8,768,000 2,976,000

BHERERARLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. Share Capital continueq

Notes: (continued)
(0)

Repurchase of own shares

During the year ended

31 December 2020, the Company

repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

14. R (#)
Brat: (&)
b)  BEEIAH R

REBEE_T-_TF+_A=+—H1
FE AQPARBIAMBELEERS R

P
Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate
ordinary shares price paid price paid purchase
Month of repurchase repurchased per share per share price paid
BEZAH BOEBRYE ENBRESER CABRKEEK ENLBEER
HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT
March 2020 —T-TF=R 1,488,000 3.30 3.30 4,910,000
April 2020 —T-ZTENHA 282,000 3.52 3.52 993,000
1,770,000 5,903,000

The repurchased shares during the years ended 31 December
2020 were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.

188 vsTECS Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. Share Capltal (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

Deferred shares

The Company acquired, through trusts setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation, a total of 4,308,000 ordinary shares
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
11,372,000) from the open market for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$29,991,000 (2020: HK$44,212,000). These
shares would be used primarily for providing employment/executive
compensation of the Group. The costs of acquisition of shares were
recognised in the “Deferred reserve” in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 8,565,000 (2020:
5,740,000) deferred shares with a total value of approximately
HK$26,660,000 (2020: HK$16,072,000) were vested and
transferred to all eligible employees.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of the
reporting period

14, A (2)

Biat: (&)

(©

31 December 2021

RAERL 1D

REBEE-_T-_—F+=ZA=+—8H
IEFE AAREBHENAERMHE
MBEZELTRAFAME LBAAH
4,308,0000% ( —ZF — T4 : 11,372,000
BIARREBER ReRELELD
529,991,000 L (Z T =T F:
44,212,000 ) - ZERNEEEH
RIBERAEEZBE TR E U
BROHZKARGAEREBRE [E
IEfEE] NEER -

REBEE-T-—F+=ZA=+—H1t
F[E 4 {E#26,660,0008 T (Z T =
= 4 :16,072,000/% 7T ) 2 8,565,000
B (= Z = 4 : 5,740,000/% ) iE FE A%
P ERBUTEERTHMEAERES-

R EHRRE B R RITEZ B
FH

No. of options
outstanding at

No. of options
outstanding at
31 December 2020

RZIEZ- RZEZEHF

Exercise price +=B=+-—H +=B=+-H

Exercise period T TfEE RITEBRE RITHRBRE
17 February 2013 to —Z—=%-"F++BZE HK$2.227

16 February 2021 —ZE-—F=-A+H 22278 T - 720,000
23 March 2013 to —T-=f=R=+=HZ HK$2.028

22 March 2021 —E-—%=fA=-+=H 2.028% 7T - -

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

BHERERARLF

SOBRERTRHEARNZEAR
A-BREBR - ZEEREZE—F
BN P BWMKRMEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

(@)

190 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the new share option
scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company. The subscription price is determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares;
(i) the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The vesting period of
the options from the date of grant is determined by the Directors
and the options are then exercisable within a period of ten years
including the vesting period, if any. Each share option gives
the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

. =p
15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments contivey ~ 15. AR X 2 & E M
I8 (4)

Share option scheme of the Company (continued) () AArIERESE (2

No share options were granted under the New Scheme during REE-Z-_—FR_ZT_FF

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. +_ A=+ BLFE -BER

BETET B H AR -

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) AUNTARBZERREE:
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt REE-_Z = —
shares for the year ended 31 December 2021: TZRA=+—BILEEE M

EEREANEY ARG
HE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercisable
asat Exercised asat asat Contractual Remaining
1 January during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting term of contractual
2021 the year 2021 2021 price conditions options life
(HKS)
i b3 RZBZ-% RIB=-%
-B-H TZA=t-B tZA=+-8 BRE Eil
ERTE RERTHE HRTE ENiind e SRR BHES ELES ]
Date of grant R AH (B7)
17 February 2011 =F——F 720,000 (720,000) - - 2221 2 years from 10 years 0.14 years
ZAt+tA date of grant
BiRHARE 105 0145
o
23 March 2011 2% o - - - 2028 2 years from 10 years 0.23 years
=A=+=H date of grant
BRIEAHE 10% 0.23%
g
720,000 (720,000) - R

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during 2021 was HK$7.29.

TR —FRETEZER
FERITEE BB Z N FHIR
BAR7.2098 T -

EhExEREReE —=-—==3 191
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments conines ~ 15. ABRB X Z2EHZEE N

18 ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continuea) () AArIERESE (2
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, iy ATAEDZEREEE:
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of Bt REBEE-_ZTZ_Z2F
shares for the year ended 31 December 2020: +=ZA=+—HLEFE AT
EEREHUNEDRMNRSG
wH
Outstanding Exercisable
Qutstanding Exercised asat asat Contractual Remaining
as at 1 January during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting term of contractual
2020 the year 2020 2020 price conditions options life
(HKS)
Qe 323 RZZ2-2F RIZ_2F
-A-H +=ZA=+-B +zZA=t+-A8
HATHE RERTTE HARITHE ¥ o4 GEET BREAOFE HBANEH
Date of grant REAH (#B7)
17 February 2011 5% 1,920,000 (1,200,000) 720,000 720,000 2.221 2 years from 10 years 0.14 years
ZAt++A date of grant
ERHHE 105 0.14%
eEE
23 March 2011 3 1,680,000 (1,680,000) - - 2.028 2 years from 10 years 0.23 years
ZE-tZ=A date of grant
BRLAH 106 0.23%
vk
3,600,000 (2,880,000) 720,000 720,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise —ETFRNETHEZER
for share options exercised during 2020 was HK$6.22. ERITEE BB NEFHIR

BAR6.228 T

16. Reserves of the Company 16. R B fRAE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEBREEESHEXNSTD 2FIR
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the FREBZEHEREIEN G A E TR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes Ko-AQREREZAXID E R KB
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the TFEEZENRERESH 2FBERT
beginning and the end of the current and prior years are set out PUNNE

below:
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PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. Reserves of the Company ontined 16. XA Rlf#EE =)
Capital
Share  redemption Capital Deferred  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE EABEGRE ERfE 13- ZitER am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THERT THERT THERT THT THRT
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Hzt) (Hi) (Hit) (M)
Balance at 1 January 2020 RoZ-2E-A-Br&# 873,825 8,530 4519 (62008)  (547,699) 057,167
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREARALE
income for the year - - - - 241,774 241,774
Dividend paid BERKRE - - - - (242,419) (242,413)
Deferred share purchased EEEEERR - - - (37,920) - (37,920)
Vesting of deferred shares ERRHER - - - 16,072 - 16,072
Share options exercised ERETRERE 8,768 = (2,976) = = 5,792
Repurchase of own shares BEAZRH
~ Premium paid -BfHEE - - - - (5,726) (5,726)
— Transfer between reserves -FERER - 177 - - (177) =
Balance as at 31 December 2020 WM =Z-TF+-A=1+—H
a3 882,593 8,707 1,543 (103,856) (554,241) 234,746
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZZZ-§-A-Bz#&H% 882,593 8,707 1,543 (103,856) (554,241) 234,746
Profit and total comprehensive FREFHREZERALE
income for the year - - - - 365,729 365,729
Dividend paid EfRE - - - - (320138  (320139)
Deferred share purchased BERERERN - - - (22,758) - (22,758)
Vesting of deferred shares EXRHEB - - - 26,660 - 26,660
Share options exercised BETFEERE 2,275 - (744) - - 1,531
Balance as at 31 December 2021 MZZ-—%+-A=1+—H
bl 884,868 8,707 799 (09.954)  (508,650) 285,770
Note: Hez -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the BRARECHEREN BREAEREH
nature and purpose of reserves. WEMIEE -
EHexarEmas -2 553 193
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract

17. EZREMERNRERS

Liabilities FIR=Ki
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ZE-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables 2 5 B FIE 15,223,772 10,795,001
Other payables and accruals b FE AT SRIB R FE AT IE 1,314,855 1,126,687
16,538,627 11,921,688
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Contract liabilities EHaE 708,830 711,943
Less: non-current portion B FERNERER (855) (481)
707,975 711,462

(@  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to (a)
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

AEEZHERAAEEREZ
FEEHN FI30EI0H - & 5 EN
RERBEZAHE D 2 E® YT

mE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiERT FHET
0 - 60 days 0Z260H 15,019,205 10,479,822
Over 60 days #E@E60H 204,567 315,179
15,223,772 10,795,001
(o) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were by BESZREMENFRBEEREERBEAT

denominated in the following currencies:

5 S s A0

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

HK$ BT 24,268 26,517
RMB AR 9,602,903 7,693,854
uss$ ETT 4,775,637 2,756,275
S$ b3 T 644,508 335,691
THB BN 573,498 440,619
RP ENEfE 917,813 668,732
16,538,627 11,921,688
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Trade and Other Payables and Contract
L|ab|||t|eS (continued)

(¢)  Included in other payables and accruals is an entrusted loan
from an associate of HK$260,760,000 (2020: HK$252,280,000).
The loan from an associate is denominated in RMB and is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.

(d)  Contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments received from
customers. Balance of HK$711,462,000 as at 1 January 2021
(2020: HK$545,893,000) was fully recognised as revenue during
the year when the customers have taken possession of and
accepted the products.

Contract liabilities of HK$708,830,000 (2020: HK$711,943,000)
were recognised as at 31 December 2021 mainly as a result of
the prepayment received from customers during the year ended
31 December 2021 in advance of satisfaction of performance
obligation, and HK$707,975,000 (2020: HK$711,462,000) are
expected to be fully recognised as revenue within one year.

17. BEZRHMENE

RENRE
rIR=RiAE D

(c) HtvpEMNZFEREFGRBEBIRE
—HBERARREBEZETER
260, 760000/%71:(f7f§¢
252,280,000/ 70) ;2 E M —
“M“ﬂzﬁiz%‘ﬂu}\E%?
B AEER 28R —FAE

f& e

d AHEEBEFEREBRFPUKEMIE
H KB-R-—TE-——&—A—A-
EERT711,462,0008 0 (T =
T :545,893,000 L) R E
)E%EI&ZWIXWZEW S H R

R AW .

W_if:—iJr:Her—av
EERAE 4 E[E708,830,000%
n(:jfjﬁ 711,943,000
L) FTEHREBEE_T - —F
+—ﬂ_+—E|¢EFEJEﬁE
HWETHEBREFWEBMNZE

I%Eu+7o7,975,ooo/%7c(_§
ZZTF 711,462,000 7T) B R

—FRNBREER B
Other financial liabilities HtemaE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FERT FHT
Secured obligations (note 3.4) BEBER (H:23.4) 321,173 2,778,062

The carrying amounts of other financial liabilities were denominated in EtemBBECREBENTIEE
the following currencies: (=

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FAET
RMB AR 253,302 2,663,589
Us$ E7T 67,871 114,473
321,173 2,778,062
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

19. Deferred Taxation 19. IEEFL I8

The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

BEREEE,/ (AE)FE2 2N
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —EF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

At 1 January —A—H 134,282 103,888
Credited to the consolidated statement .ﬁ)\ﬁ Bz=E (MiF26)

of profit or loss (Note 26) 1,540 24,349

Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary & B E —FEHE R RIRE - (2,630)

Exchange difference PE & =% 2,272 8,675

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 138,094 134,282

Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows:

EERELEERABEERER &
ER N

2021 2020
—ZE2-—F —E-FTHF
Deferred tax assets — Inventories and EEBEEE-FERESEK HK$’000 HK$’000
trade receivables provisions IEERE FET FET
At 1 January —HA—H 174,527 123,078
Credited to the consolidated statement of _f]\,vT\/\TE\ﬁiﬁﬁ
profit or loss 4,933 34,681
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 3,205 16,768
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A” 182,665 174,527
2021 2020
—E—F —EFF
Deferred tax liabilities - Accelerated tax EEFHIEEE - MEKRERE HK$’000 HK$’000
depreciation and others R EHAh FET FET
At 1 January Hn—A—H (40,245) (19,190)
Debited to the consolidated M iraERR
statement of profit or loss (3,393) (10,332)
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary BBIE —FHBATRE - (2,630)
Exchange difference fE N E%E (933) (8,093
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H (44,571) (40,245)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. Lease liabilities 20. fHEEE

At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZE-——F+-A=+—H HES&
BEENATH RSB EE:

2021 2020

—E-—F ZETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 year —FR 102,530 95,799

After 1 year but within 2 years iR —FEDREF 66,370 64,546

After 2 years but within 5 years BRARTFEIRAT 58,709 66,738

More than 5 years ZHREF 21,923 34,656

147,002 165,940

249,532 261,739

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were denominated in the HEAGBErFEESBEUTIHERE:
following currencies:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBT FHET

RMB AR 146,102 154,013

S$ bk 7T 10,468 19,344

THB Eg7 89,283 87,823

RP HER’ 3,679 559

249,532 261,739
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

e am ol
21. Borrowings 21. 16 &
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FET FET
Non-current JEFRED
Unsecured bank borrowings MK MRITEE (a) 1,543,000 =
1,543,000 -
Current TE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEFRITEE (a) 4,726,538 6,733,250
Secured mortgage loan EEMIZBER (o) 8,780 17,562
4,735,318 6,750,812
Total borrowings BmEE (© 6,278,318 6,750,812
Notes: Hiat:
(@  Unsecured bank borrowings (@ EEPRITEE

As at 31 December 2021, unsecured loans of HK$935,885,000
(2020: HK$930,999,000) and HK$607,115,000 (2020:
HK$552,901,000) were repayable on 19 July 2024 and 20
September 2024 (2020: 29 July 2021 and 9 September 2021)
respectively. The loans were unsecured and bore interest at rates as
disclosed in section (d) below.

(b)  Secured mortgage loan (b)

The loan is secured by buildings with net book value
of HK$125,109,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$178,458,000). The loan contains a repayment on demand
clause and the portion of the loan to be repaid after one year of
HK$5,880,000 (2020: HK$8,118,000) is classified as current.
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935,885,000 L (Z T T F:
930,999,000 7t ) K& 607,115,000/
7T (= F = F4F 552,901,000/ 7T) 2
EEPFERES IR _E-_HF+ A
+ABR=ZZ-_mFAA=+H (=
E_EF . _TE-_—F+tA=-+ANH
F—E-—FNAAR)EBE-%ZE
RABEEENIR T X (EEE 2 F X
e

BEMIZBER

R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—H EX
LA BR )% {8 A£125,109,0008 T (=&
— T4 1 178,458,000/ 70) 2 B FEIK
H-ZEEREAREREZIKER T
B —F 12 EE 2 B3 EF5 5,880,000
B (ZZE T4 :8,118,000/8 7T) o
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21. Borrowings (ontinued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

21.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

BE

Hrat: (&)

The Group’s unsecured bank borrowings and secured mortgage (c) AEEBEzEEKFRTEEREAR
loan were repayable as follows: ARBERARNTIHBBESR:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Within 1 year or on demand —FRRIZER 4,735,318 6,750,812
Between 2 and 5 years —EhEF 1,543,000 =
6,278,318 6,750,812
The effective interest rates were as follows: (d) EBRFAERT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRMIRITEE 0.59%-4.96% 0.61%-8.01%
Secured mortgage loan BEMIEBER 0.81%-1.09% 0.85%-3.17%
The carrying amounts of unsecured bank borrowings and (e) EEBWETEELEERBIRIBEE
secured mortgage loan were denominated in the following RZEMESBU T EEEE:
currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
HK$ BT 300,180 167,562
RMB AR 3,364,968 3,275,854
uss ETT 2,206,409 3,103,201
S$ T 86,701 -
THB B3 7S 179,203 204,195
RP e &E 140,857 -
6,278,318 6,750,812
mugxERamas —=-—54% 199



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information 22. WKk o HEFR

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

200 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

DHMEMDERAAEEZ&ERET
BEBRABRFGEOBRARR D H
RORBERMABER —BRZ2TARmA-
$%@2%%Eﬁﬁ%@A%ﬁ%$
Rt ME AEEZSETHRER
ABEUTEEERZARE D ME
m2%E:

REDWRERMNFAAZHEFTEZAEDE
¥E pEENS ISR EMLZES
PlaNE SH B - = BE S & E b5 5P
NITHRER -

FAXREERERDE N BREAF
EARAZAIREDBERESAR T



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information continued 22. Wz K 7 EE R @)
(@) Business segments () % 0%
The business segments of the Group are as follows: NEE T XEDIOT
Segments Principal activities
paN:i TEXEK
Consumer electronics Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,
drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).
HEET REBSABMBRERER (BHRETRRER  FH - BEARE TEDHFK 3D

ENH R E) -

Enterprise systems Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,
databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

ERES REBREMBIREREEZ CERA TR (PREMF RIERL  UniNTIRIS S -
BIRE L) RAMBHRER R MR KT Hl #IERTERS -

Cloud computing Provision of cloud computing solutions and services.
EitE REEAEBRT RFR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

: A\ 3 w o,
22. Revenue and Segment Information coninueo 22. W Rk D HBER «)
(@) Business segments (continued) (a) EBKDE(#)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are gz—-——&#+-Ag=+—AH
as follows: FEEZDPEENMT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEET PERS EHE k|
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERx FiERx FTER FERT
Total segment revenue Dbl iEEE 32,282,472 43,709,422 2,343,552 78,335,446
Segment results DEVELR 570,922 967,775 91,147 1,629,844
Fair value changes of other Hith e REELZ
financial assets N EEH 31,368
Finance costs BB ER (146,521)
1,514,691
Share of associates’ profits DB E R RN F 58,903
Share of a joint venture’s loss DERELERBE (18,458)
Profit before taxation B 750 BT A 1,555,136
Taxation IE (241,110)
Profit for the year F R F 1,314,026
Reportable segment assets AmENHEE 10,467,968 13,763,772 718,149 24,949,889
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

: AN AR EA] .
22. Revenue and Segment Information continued 22. Wz K 7 EE R @)
(@) Business segments (continuea) (a) XK DI (2
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are HEFT-FTF+=ZA=+—8H
as follows: EFEZDBEHENT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEET ERL EiE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Total segment revenue DEBU B 27,364,638 40,914,823 1,682,420 69,961,881
Segment results DEVEE 450,597 898,147 71,610 1,420,354
Finance costs B ER (193,908)
1,226,446
Share of associates’ profits D E D AR F 23,685
Share of a joint venture's loss PMEEECEERE (2,866)
Profit before taxation B B A1 4 A 1,247,265
Taxation 18 (179,685)
Profit for the year F AR A 1,067,580
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 7,634,400 11,505,781 486,770 19,626,951
Note: HeE -
All of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 AEEHE_T-_—FRZT_TF
and 2020 are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and are +TZA=Z+—BLEFENABRIZR
substantially from sale of goods. BEAVMBREENFEISHER I
FTEREBEERBEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information continueq

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment assets (b) JFHELHBEENEHER
Assets BE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 24,949,889 19,626,951

Intangible assets mEEE 358,069 359,386

Interests in associates REEE QA R 988,860 953,407

Interest in a joint venture REBTENER 11,333 29,250

Deferred tax assets RIER & E 182,665 174,527

Other receivables and prepayments b FEYRIE R TR 3R IB 1,298,124 1,217,546

Other financial assets HEtemEE 1,139,994 3,505,312

Cash and cash equivalents RekBEFEY 3,247,498 3,559,192

Consolidated total assets REREE 32,176,432 29,425,571
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22. Revenue and Segment Information continveq

(©)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. WK pEBE X )

Geographical information (c) WEER
The Group’s three business segments operate principally in rEEB=-@AXBIBEERILE
North Asia and South East Asia. NEmMEEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Revenue g
North Asia it 61,935,994 55,354,208
South East Asia R 16,399,452 14,607,673
Total segment revenue 7 EBUL ER 4B EE 78,335,446 69,961,881
Revenue is allocated based on the region in which the customer W= RIBE R PR E 5 B
is located.
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Assets &=
North Asia ik gn 20,537,575 16,189,631
South East Asia REE 4,412,314 3,437,320
Reportable segment assets AISRE DI EE 24,949,889 19,626,951
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the ARENPHEERBEEMTH
assets are located. paNl v
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. Other Gains, Net 23. HAttt A FEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income FLBUA 20,565 13,916
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment & W% - B E MR & 2 BB - (15)
Government grant KT 48 B 11,016 17,753
Fair value changes of other financial assets EhemEEZAFEE 31,368 =
Others Hth 2,725 4,371
65,674 36,025
24. Operating Profit 24, #8& 5 F
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: KEHEMNTDEMBR (T A) A TEE
‘IS
2021 2020
—2--F ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories FERA 75,063,401 67,072,149
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BIRA(BREEES)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare —¥& R RER 947,770 792,297
— Provident fund contributions —REEHR 155,258 70,873
Auditors’ remuneration Z S AN B &
- audit fees —BREA 7,476 7,101
- non-audit fees —FEBEZER 1,443 1,314
Depreciation of property, M BRE REETE (Hits)
plant and equipment (note 5) 128,424 122,560
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) mREERE (M) 3,740 1,790
Net (decrease)/increase in provision for inventories 17 & B (R 2), /18 hn F 48 (28,123) 66,129
Net increase in provision for trade and H 5 N L e WWURR IR S 45 N
other receivables HER 133,119 143,094
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29.

26.

Finance Costs

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

25. % E R

2021 2020
—BE-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest expense on: Ty gEzFMEMAY
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX - 28
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EIKRIRITEE 143,357 190,247
— Secured mortgage loan —BEBRBER 134 486
— Lease liabilities —fHEaRE 3,030 3,147
146,521 193,908
Taxation 26. PiIE
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RiFaEacNR 2 HWIEBEBSREE:
profit or loss represents:
2021 2020
—E- 5 —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current taxation RNEARI IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BHENEH 4,065 7,396
- Taxation outside Hong Kong — BB EINTIE 238,047 196,104
Under-provision of taxation BEFEEBEINEE
outside Hong Kong in prior years BETRE 538 534
Deferred taxation (Note 19) EERIIR (HiF19) (1,540) (24,349)
241,110 179,685

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31

December 2021.

BEREFGHRREZE_ZE-_—F+=A
St HALEFEZMEFERB G NN

ME16.6% (- T - T4 :16.5% ) &t

R

BHERERARLF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

26. Taxation (continued)

26. B8 (@)

B 5 LA SN B TR IR 4 70 1 B R Lk

Taxation outside Hong Kong has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect BEAER
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

UWAEEETE
ERZBETE

IR AV

==
BERK

B F 1 AR

PEZIELER
ZZNF-A-—BRERMZEMNHAE

HE2RBEB DR M%7 FEIRF -

AEBEBRBRAGEN 2 HBEEREL
MEEEEZBRSBZERENT :

2021 2020
—E2-—F ZTF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Profit before taxation B %5 A A 1,555,136 1,247,265
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% BRI E16.5%:T & 256,597 205,799
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRBBENEERE TR E 2
jurisdictions - (17,188) (28,434)
Income not subject to taxation AR Z WA (16,761) (11,112)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BB E AR AT 12,201 10,388
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 538 534
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised {5t RFERFHEE B 2
MBTE 4,455 1,201
Tax effect of withholding tax on profits of the TERM P AW B AT EHN 2
PRC subsidiaries Bz 1,268 1,309
Taxation charge MIELZ N 241,110 179,685
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

27. Dividends 27. BB
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FAEBEZERMRALRQT
Company attributable to the year EaBEEARE
2021 2020
—E- —TE-THE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FHET
Final dividend proposed after the end of A R B SR 18 R R B AR 2.
the reporting period of HK27 cents B EBR27EL
(2020: HK22 cents) per ordinary share (ZZE=—ZTF:2251) 394,000 320,100
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period RIEHRERRRPRE L E
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting RBEHRBERREBE-
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) £E—BBEFEEEBLILR
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FAMAERIKSMS 2 BN
approved and paid during the year ARuEZHFEBEARE

2021 2020
—E-—F TR F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiERT FHET
Final dividend in respect of the previous E—HBFERFAIER
financial year, approved and paid R 2 AR BB R E AR
during the year of HK22 cents 20N (=BT F -
(2020: HK16.7 cents) per ordinary share 16.7/811) 320,138 242,413
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

28. Earnings Per Share 28.

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$1,314,026,000 (2020: HK$1,067,580,000) and the weighted
average of 1,416,939,000 shares (2020: 1,413,246,000 shares) in
issue.

FRER
B

FRNERERBAERARGERFTEGA
JE 15 % F1,314,026,0008 0 (—ZF =

4

1,067,580,000/8 7T ) M B 317 i%

3 2 I kEF 15 $1,416,939,0000% ( =

E-EE

1,413,246,000% f% ) 5+ & o

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—BzE%TEE

(thousands) (FR%) 1,454,452 1,453,342
Exercise of share options (thousands) TEERRE (TR) 683 336
Repurchase of own shares (thousands) BRIAS KD (FI) - (1,356)
Effect of deferred shares (thousands) B D 272 (TR) (38,196) (39,076)

Weighted average number of ordinary sharesas R+ - A=+—HZ L@i%
at 31 December (thousands) IREEHE (FH) 1,416,939 1,413,246
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREARZF (FRRE) 92.74 75.54

Diluted

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$1,314,026,000 (2020: HK$1,067,580,000) and the weighted
average number of shares of 1,416,965,000 (2020: 1,414,887,000
shares), calculated as follows:

g

FRASREBERNRARAEE

A

A FEAE % F1,314,026,000 T (=&

—

1,067,580,000%& 7T ) & i% 15

2 INHE 19 #1,416,965,0000% (= &
— T :1,414,887,0000% ) st E WM :

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+—A=+—B8#TEER
as at 31 December (thousands) EEHE (TR 1,416,939 1,413,246
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share a8 IR B 2 3R
options (thousands) (FR%) 26 1,641
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+-ZA=+—B#&&>
(diluted) as at 31 December (thousands) LR T8 (FR) 1,416,965 1,414,887
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) &S B F (FREL) 92.74 75.45

210 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 20 EENSREEEWS

Emoluments

(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENIERFARREZESZ
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: Me@BEMAT :
2021 2020
—E-— —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Fees we 972 617
Other emoluments Eiie
— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EXFEREREL 10,633 9,839
— Discretionary bonus — BB TEAL 10,244 6,162
- Contributions to pension scheme — R EIHER 228 77
22,077 16,695

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31

December 2021 is set out below:

EEEHE_ZT-_—F+_-A
“t+—ALFEZHMEERHINDOT :

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
HEEXHER EBRE
g wne FEERE BETA st k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FTER FTER TER FET
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin T - 5,460 5,540 18 11,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 125 2,617 958 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau BRI - 910 1,790 18 2,718
Gu Sanjun B=E - 866 1,536 156 2,558
Li Yue ES2] - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Director FUMTES
Xia Bin EE 120 - - - 120
Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah SR K F 286 - - - 286
Independent Non-executive Directors BURTES
Lam Hin Chi BBy 120 - - - 120
Li Wei iz 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HRR 48 - - - 48
Wang Xiaolong TBEH 120 - - - 120
LiYi =5 33 - - - 33
972 10,633 10,244 228 22,077
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments ontinuea
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continuec)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

20 EEREAREEENS

(%)

(a)

EEME 2

REEHE-_ZT_Z2E+ = A
Zt+—BLEFEZBMEHEIOT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
HEEXHER EBRE
BEME wne FEEREE BfsE4L sHEIER e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TER FTER FERT FET
Executive Directors WITES
Li Jialin FE s 5,460 3,340 18 8,818
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 109 2,580 912 18 3,619
Chan Hoi Chau BEM - 912 1,590 18 2,520
Li Yue ZH - 780 320 18 1,118
Chow Ying Chi FEZE - 107 - 5 112
Non-executive Director FUMTES
Xia Bin EE 28 - - - 28
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFNTES
Lam Hin Chi 310 120 - - - 120
Li Wei £ 120 - - - 120
Hung Wai Man HAER 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong TR 120 - - - 120
617 9,839 6,162 77 16,695

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$441,000 (2020: HK$480,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the current and prior
years.

During the current and the prior year, no Director of the
Company waived any emoluments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE —ZT — —4

ToA=+—HIEFE

. [] . ) = ==
29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 20 EENSREEEWS
Emoluments continues) (%)
(b) Five highest paid individuals by EEEEFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the RAEBEFAREHEEaALTE
Group for the year included two (2020: two) Directors whose EMBE(ZE_ZEF -MB)E
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. FHEELHMEEREXENNZ
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2020: three) DA RB-FAZNTEH=
individuals during the year are as follows: Z(ZEZZTZZ)ATZHE
mE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Fees we - _

Basic salaries and allowances BEAF & KR 5,003 4,866

Discretionary bonuses BISTEAL 7,973 9,230

Contributions to pension schemes RIREFHEIH R 558 387

13,534 14,483

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e HZANMT:
Number of individuals
AE

Emolument band [ ] 2021 2020

—E-—F —EFF

HK$3,500,001 —HK$4,000,000 3,500,001% 7T— 4,000,000/ 7T 1 1

HK$4,000,001 —HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T— 4,500,000/ 7T 1 =

HK$5,000,001 —HK$5,500,000 5,000,0017% 7T— 5,500,000/ 7T 1 1

HK$5,500,001 —HK$6,000,000

5,500,001 7T 6,000,000/ 7T =

BHERERARLF
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30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  30.

(@)

214 vSTECS Holdings Limited

MEREeRERKRME

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) BR# A& F L & & AT 15
generated from operations BEFHEHR
2021 2020
—F-—-F ZTTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FHT FHET
Profit before taxation R 75 i A 1,555,136 1,247,265
Interest income FBIA 23 (20,565) (13,916)
Interest expense F B 25 146,521 193,908
Depreciation of property, M BERRETE 24
plant and equipment 128,424 122,560
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A E 24 3,740 1,790
Share of associates’ profits DREEE QR F (58,903) (23,685)
Share of a joint venture’s loss DME—EEEEEIE 18,458 2,866
Fair value gain on investment KE 2 A FERE 23 (31,368) =
Loss on disposal of property, HEE WEREHE2 23
plant and equipment 518 - 15
Operating profit before working EEESBEA
capital changes £ R 1,741,443 1,530,803
Changes in working capital LBELESEE
Increase in trade and other receivables Z 5 K&E IR IE A K
and deferred expenses TERER ST (1,570,252) (961,491)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE& (Em,m (3,835,009) 483,925
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N EAth FE T FRIB A K
and contract liabilities EHaEEN 4,613,826 1,731,067
Net cash generated from operations KEMSER SR8 950,008 2,784,304
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30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. mEHRE

N

Bt 5 R R B & (

ma

EZEB-—F+-A=+—RHIIFE

ME KM EE

(#&)

- b ﬁﬂ”““%iﬂﬁﬁ?i(
Reconciliation of (assets)/liabilities arising from (b) E) SEEYE
financing activities a

Other financial Other financial
Lease liabilities Borrowings assets liabilities Total
HEaRE &8 HtheREE Hivemas b
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 17) (Note 18)
(Hiit20) (o) (K1) (Hi#18)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TFiEn THEL TiEn TiEn FiEn
At 1 January 2020 RZE-Z%-5-H 258,208 8,017,112 - - 8,275,315
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEBR&FELH:
Proceeds from new bank loans MEBTERHGRE = 20,181,388 = = 20,181,388
Repayment of borrowings BERE ] - (21,371,075) - - (21,371,075)
(Pledging of assets for)proceeds from ~ BEAREHR (EHEEE)/
secured obligations F§sA - - (15,933,776) 16,054,567 120,791
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERAERENEEHS (115,109) - - - (115,109)
Interest paid EfFE (3,147) (190,761) - (193,908)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEB & HEZEHEE (118,256) (1,380,448) (15,933,776) 16,054,567 (1,377,913
Other changes: A 2!
Increase in lease liabilties from entering R EIR I EHARTAE
into renewal new or leases mENMEEEE
during the period 124,949 - - - 124,949
Interest expense ﬂ SR 3147 190,761 - - 193,908
Derecognition RIFER (12,567) - - - (12,567)
Set-off of pledged assets against LA EERAEEHGERER
secured obligations - - 13,276,505 (13,276,505) -
Exchange adjustments iEFwH B 6,263 (76,613) - - (70,350)
Total other changes “§)J 121,792 114,148 13,276,505 (13,276,505) 235,940
At 31 December 2020 —Z-% ¢+ A=1+-H 261,739 6,750,812 (2,657,271) 2,778,062 7,133,342
At 1 January 2021 E"‘—g— -%#-5-H 261,739 6,750,812 (2,657,271) 2,778,062 7,133,342
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEB&FELH:
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERAENE - 13,890,134 - - 13,890,134
Repayment of borrowings BEEE } - (14,373,890) - - (14,373,890)
(Pledging of assets forproceeds from ~ BEAEH (ERELE)/
secured obligations FigsE - - (5,998,991) 5,945,866 (53,125)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERAERENAEHS (90,584) - - - (90,584)
Interest paid BRF S (3,030) (143,491) - - (146,521)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEB & HELZHEE (93,614) (627,247) (5,998,991) 5,945,866 (773,986)
Other changes: Hive:
Increase in lease liabilties from entering N EINET L ERAFHHE
into renewal or new leases MENNEEEE
during the period 84,086 - - - 84,086
Interest expense FEREX 3,030 143,491 - - 146,521
Derecognition RIFH®R (4,678) - - - (4,678)
Set-off of pledged assets against NEEREEEH
secured obligations BERER - - 8,487,912 (8,487,912) -
Exchange adjustments BEi A% (1,081) 11,262 (86,129) 85,157 9,259
Total other changes EthBees 81,407 154,753 8,401,783 (8,402,755) 235,188
At 31 December 2021 R-B--ET-A=T-H 249532 6,278,318 (254,479) 321,173 6,594,544
muerrpamas —T--—55% 215
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE - T -—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

31.

32.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments to make
capital contributions of HK$26,308,000 (2020: HK$69,494,000) to

certain investments.

Acquisition of a subsidiary

The Group acquired 60% equity interest in EE &UE CRI BR A A
(“Z £ %II") during the year ended 31 December 2020. The principal
activity of22 2 % 3llis provision of cloud management platform service.
The fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed for the

Group’s acquisition were as follows:

31. BEAREKE

R—_BE-_—F+-_A=Z+—8 4HA&£E
ﬁﬁ T T84 1 426,308,000/8 7T (=

T T F 69,494,000 70 ) 2 AIE -

32. BB —

FFM—@

[ i /8 2 7

HE-Z_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLF
ﬁ'$il%$@éﬁﬁ(%

NRRAI([EE2FY])z60%kiE- 22
T ZETBEK AR

I B R

2 ¥ AR

e AEBWBERMEBEEE KA

BRBEZAFEHINT:

2020

—E-EF

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment (note 5) VI BB KRB (HiEs) 135

Intangible assets (note 6) mEEE (WHiF6) 23,464

Trade and other receivables B 5 & EAth fE W GRIE 1,030

Trade and other payables B 5 K H b fE T IR (202)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 19) RIEHIERE ( /5/73;%79) (2,630)

Net identifiable assets AR FEE 21,797

Less: Non-controlling interests R IEE AR R A (8,719)

Add: Goodwill n:EE 8,340

Net consideration REFH 21,418

Representing: K&

Cash consideration paid included in cash flows FAREES RS RENENREERE

from investing activities 11,172

Consideration payable at year end RELEAEMFRSRE 10,246
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—FT-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

33. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li"),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$220,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2020: HK$220,000).

Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr.
Li, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2020: HK$15,000).

License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co.,
a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co. (2020: HK$14,000).

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 29)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$70,070,000
during the year (2020: HK$66,785,000).

3B HAEAEIXRE

NTREBEALETZRS:

(a)

BHERERARLF

EEES

AEBHREFEREER AR (KX
ARAIEREVITESTEMEL
(IFEENABETEREZQA)
R HEEEEIIL—HEER
HoBREZBE AXEEREF
BRAER N AX M AME220,000
BT (ZZTE-ZTF:220,000%
JL) e

b

AEBHEFEREREAER AR (KX
ARRAIEREVTESTRNEARE
EREZARIY—MHAER
ERE-BEZDBE AKERE
FEEERAAXZM AM15,000
BLT(ZZT T F:15,0008
JL) e

ntl

FE B

AEBEHEBEEEAR (FAAE
%IEJ&%Z&*)JI—@WJ

IR E AEBERFEE
WERET A ERE14,000%8
TTAERBERR(ZZTZZTF:
14,000 7T ) °

&

z
2

zg’éﬂki?ﬁﬁ (
FEMIEE 20PN IR B 2 € 58
FRN - FTEEBAEZHE L
70,070,0005%%(:§_§¢:
66,785,000/ 7T ) °
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34. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

34. AR R ZBBEMRRE

As at 31 December 2021 R-—ZE-_—-+ZRA=1T—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHBT FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W REREE 681 1,279
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR 2RE 7 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,115,842 2,116,440
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JiE W Bt /B8 2 R RIR 742,270 369,270
Prepayments TET A 207 199
Cash and cash equivalents Be &fﬁ TEEY 47,282 36,640
789,759 406,109
Total assets BEE 2,905,601 2,522,549
EQUITY =
Share capital A% A 14 145,517 145,445
Reserves ] 16 285,770 234,746
Total equity iR 431,287 380,191
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JEN—RM B AR FKIE 2,474,314 2,142,358
Total liabilities HmeE 2,474,314 2,142,358
Total equity and liabilities EEhaERRE 2,905,601 2,522,549
Net current liabilities REBEEFERE 1,684,555 1,736,249
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 431,287 380,191
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 EEgR_T-_F="A=-+mWA#H
March 2022. R BRI o
Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William
ZE{EM EXE
Director Director
EZE EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not
Yet Effective for the year ended 31 December
2021

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to
the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous
Contracts —Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022

2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of 1 January 2023

Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting
policies

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of
accounting estimates

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related
to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

35.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M FE=R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out below:

AEEBEAAMRFE I LENRAER
BEHERTIMT

2 /=
Results E
Years ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t-BLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—$--f  CE-EF Z®-hF ZE-NF ZB-tf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FET TR TR
Revenue Yz 78,335,446 69,961,881 66,209,921 62,481,961 54,543,084
Profit before taxation BREL AR A 1,555,136 1,247,265 1,009,507 946,999 919,711
Taxation BB (241,110) (179,685) (199,559 (206,172) (203,270)
Profit for the year FREF 1,314,026 1,067,580 809,948 740,827 716,441
Attributable to: MTATES:
Equity Shareholders of AREERFBEA
the Company 1,314,026 1,067,580 809,948 740,827 716,441
Assets and Liabilities EERAEE
As at 31 December
W+=ZB=1+-8
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EC-F —TCER —E-nE —E-N\E —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FTET THT TAT
Total assets BEE 32,176,432 29,425,571 24,936,069 23,877,461 20,653,352
Total liabilities ZaE (24,265,002) (22,599,285) (19,281,597 (18,830,739 (15,818,638)
Total equity BRER 7,911,430 6,826,286 5,654,472 5,046,722 4,834,714

The Group had initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at 1 January
2018, and HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019. Under the transition methods and

approach chosen, comparative information is not restated.

220 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

AEEECR-_FT-N\F-A-HEXEREE
M HREEANFR LB BMBEREERIFE165

FER-B-AF—A—BEREAEEHY
BRI E 163 RIEFTRBZ B H X RS
& R EEFILERAN-



, B
VSTECS

VSTECS HOLDINGS LIMITED
B ERERARZA

Unit 3312, 33/F

China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre

200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
ERTHEP2005FEERVMEEREAE331E3312E
Tel: +852 2786 1836 Fax: +852 2786 1746
www.vstecs.com



	COVER
	HIGHLIGHTS
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



